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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

ABOUT Us

internzticnc! Entertainment Hoidings timited (the Companyl is on internationa’ holding group majority cwned
by Provicence tquity Partners. The principol octivity of the Comoany i3 to nold compenies thot corry cut
compiementary activities ocross the volue chain of lve entertainment and thechetelated activity, principally
inthe UK Uda, ang Continental BEurope {the Group). The Groug consicgers that these markets hove sgrificant

potential for growth and Tems the basis for the Group's strategy of further growth ond expansion.

Tre Compony’s main holding is The Ambasscdor Theatre Group Lmited (ATG). ATG is a globat leader in live
ertertainment ondis a fuly Inteorated operclor across the entire live entertoinment vave choin, with activities
in verue cperafions. tickeling. morketng services onc content production, ATG operctes in Germany througn
its subsidiary tehrl-BB Entertanmert GmibH (Menri-BE), which was formed by the merger of the Mehrl Group

{acquired in May Z018) with "he BB Entedcinment Group ot comparies (acauited in May 25151,
QOVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is tocused o0 providing a high level of sefvice to twn graups aof customers: producen and audience
members. By making the end-fo-end “customer journey” of our gudience too priority, we will ensure That cur
venues are the best stages for the highest quaity content developed by both our ownin-house as well as 3

porty oreducers.
Venue Operations

The dim of our venue aperatians division is to provide a great service o both our progucers and our avdience
members. We genercte revenues from renting our venues fo productiors gs well as seling food and

beverages to our auvdience members.

In order to enhance our customers” neatie going experience, we have continued 1o invest in improving the
qualily of our venues. Mary of the Group's venues are historic buildings which have an important
significance in their iocal areas. Invesiment i the mainjernance of these buildings is central 1o The Groups's
custodianship of them for the benefits of ‘ulure generctions of oudiences. The developmen! and
improevermnent of these venues to mee! the needs and expectations of today's audiences ane progducers are

equally imprortant.

in the UK, the Group owns ond operafes some of the most iconic venues with 11 in London and 21 more
acrcss the regons. The Group operctes 10 theatres in the USA, inCluging two Broodway venues {the Lyric and
tne Hudson). and 8 theatres in ather US cities, Including the Curron {Son Francisco), which opened in Octocher

201%. The Group alsc opergies § venues in Germany as oart of the Metrl-BR Entetainment Group,

It the West End {UK}, Tre tion King (Lyceum Theatre) and Wicked {Apolo Victona Theotre| continued their
hugely successful and long term rung, ard we welzomed new internationally acclaimed content to our other
venues including Betrayal (Harold Pinler Theatre}, 1an McKellen on Stage {Harold Pinter Theatre), The Lehmon
Trilogy (Ficcadilly Thealre |, Death of o Salesman [Ficcadilly Thealre], Fiddier on the Rool (Piayhoase Thealre),

and



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Cyraro de Bergerac (Playhouse Theatre). Our regionol venues in the UK alse had astrong year, with premium

shiows such as Tne Lion King. Book of Mormon, cnd tMatiids playing to full hauses and excelient reviews.

For the second yveor in arow, growlth in admiss'ons in fhe US was driven by Bary Pofter and the Cursed Chila,
and i~ October 201% the Curron Ineatre in Son Frangisco opened as 1ne West Coast home of this show. Other
highights includeg hosting David Byrme's American Uopia ot the Hudson Theatre on Broadway, wh'ch
playes to o consislently so d-out oudience, os wel as Plaza Suite ot the Colonial {Boston) ard streng

droagdway musical contont {which included Hamiltorn} across our other regional theatres,

1 Germany, admiss'ons decreased largely due to a significant number of venues closed for renovotions. The
Mehr! Thectre in Homburg wos closed for 11 manths of ti+s financicl perioc os it was returbished trom ¢ one-
nighter music venue to o tnectre with back of house capalbiities suitable for lorg running musicals and ploys,
Tre Musi'cal Dome in Cologne was closed i August anc Septemper 2017 tor weorks 1o enhance the builging.
and tre Admiraspaolast (Berlin) was closed for returbishmeants by the londiord which extendec the ©de stage
and returbished the bock of house spoces. Staright Express (Bochum) continues to perform strangly having
playes tor over 3D veors and in February 2020 we opened “he Mehr! Theotre [Homburg) for the previews of

Haorry Potter and the Cunec Child.
Ticketing

Tne Group operates the iargest theatre Noketing business in the UK and sells the majority of fickets to its shows
through its own ficketing businesses. ATG Tickets, the Group's in-hiouse tickeling busingss continues to grow
ocross the Regional and London venues, while the ticketing agency business of the Group, LOVEiheotre.com
continuved to perlarm steadily in a competitive London marketploce. ATG Tickets has launched in the USA
with tickets solc for the Colonial, Hudson and the Curran. We have invested significant:y in improving our
website to increase soles conversion ond hove glso improved our customer relationship manogement

capabilities, both of these initiatives will improve morketing investment elficocy.
Content Production

A key strategy of the Group's Content Production division is to find, secure, and produce high-ouolity shows
for both ATG ond thirg-party venues. The Groups develops and produces new content in addition to co-

producing ard investing in and presenting conten® from independent producers,

ATG Produchons enjoyed o hugely success®ul year, culminating in winning Producer of the Yeor at The Stcge
Awards, The Pinter at the Pinder season, which staried in FY19, linished in FY20 with o stand-gione production
of Befrayal (which then frarsferred 10 Broadwayf. Other nighlights for ATG Produclions included 9 to 5 The
Musical {Savoy Theatre). Carcline, or Change [Playhowse Thealre), Touching the void [Duke of York's

Theatre), and Cyrang de Bergerac (Playhouwse Theatie).

Sonia Friedmon Preductions also enjoyed a strong yeaor, with The Inheritance transfeming to Broadway {shortiy
ofter winning an Olivier Award), gnd Rosmersholm {Duke of York's Theatre), Uncle Vanyo [Haro'd Pinter

Tneaire] and Leopoldstact (Wyndham s Theatre) also receiving criticol accioim. The success of Harry Patter



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

and the Cursed Child continved, opeding in Melbourne, Scn Frangikico onc Hamburg, end the

announcemant of the show opening in Toronte for Avturmnn 2021,

In Germany, Mehr-BB8! continued to delight European cudiences with Wesi Side Story, The Bodyguord,. and
tneir new procuciion of Berln Berlin, Due to COVID-19, the press iounch of the Germaon proguction of Horry

Pater and the Cursed Thilg waes celayed.
Marketing

Tne Group through ifs subsdiawy companies of AKA Group. headquartered in London ang BB Group, heod-
quartered in Mannhoim, Germany, s obic 1o offer & wide range of marketing services, wiich are in-line and
complementaly o the Group's overal shategy. AKA, c global enterainment markeling and media
advertising agency for the live entertainment, arts and cultural industries has effices in tondan, Manchester,
New York angd Austraia. AKA hos continued 1o support the Group's strotegy of developing independent yed
comprementay business nes 10 provide o full service experience to chents within the ineane and lve
ertertoinment indusdry. Furtnermare, AKA has seen s business offering extend further ofieid with clients ng!

directly inked fa the live entertainment industry, such as museums, gelieries, garaens and zoological centres.

alongsice its production senvices, Mehr-BB Group. via its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services fof five

e~tetiainmant procsuctions n German-spesking Eurape.

Tne drectors see the Group os strongly placed for future success, with s complementary aclivities ond
P Gy P =

operatiors iccaied ir eoch of Ine key theotica markels acress e world.
REVIEW OF FY20

Tne pericd to 28 March 2020 was a yeor of continued transformation and integration for the Group, with o
review of ol areas of the bosiness to ensure the foundations of the business are sutficiently robust 1o support

tne growtt cspirgtions of the directors ard shareholders.

Uy until the middle of March, FY20 was a very successful year with our world-class creative teoms {ATG
Proouctions, SFP and BE) procucing high-quclisy and award-winning content around the worlg with sirong
ticket sales compared fo ful yeor 2019, However, in March 2020, the CCVID-19 poademic impacted the

Group sgnificanty, with cil o aur globa! venues closing by 17 kiarch 2020,

Tre final monih {Marchy of FY20 wos @ perod of considerable uncentainty for cll businessas, inciuding ours,
which wanenled o response te the unprecedented impoac] of Ihe COVID-1$ pandemic. We recognised
quickly thal there were likely to be signiicont implications of this pandemic on oursebves, as well as all ofher
location based entertanment businesses. Our markeing services business was also impacied as many of its
clients are theatricel or location enfertainment businesses, ke museumns and galteries. By 17 March 2020, we
hod closed ofl of ow venves worldwide, it order 1o protect show covs and Crew members, Gur employeess

and visitors. Since then, we have diligently followed all governmen! guideines in each relevant gsogarachy.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

As a result of 1his pondemic, ord in order *¢ protect ond mencge our business, we have token the following

meQsyres:

- creagled a Business Continuity Committee, whicn has been focused an crisis management and key

decision moking;
- orngong engagerment with all our stakenoclders, inclad ng our sharerolders ond tenders:

implementation of bi-weekly cah flow larecasts 1o monage linuidity ot o granuiar leve throughou

the: Group;
rokust scencrg made Fng to drive decision making:

- progctive management of rescheduling stows to future dates to minimize *he level of show

conceliations:

asignificant element of the Group's cost base reiates 1o wages onc sclaries. Where possible, and
subject tolocal regulations, staffing tevels and hours worked have been redoced. Emplovees have
alo urdertcken salary sacrifices, witn the Directors drawing no salaty for the period tram April to
lune, falowed by collecting @ recuced salary from fren on. Government suppor! hies been Jlilised

1o offset stafling costs that continue to be incurred:;
- capital expendiure has been rephesed or deloyed: ond

- actions hove been taken to defer or reduce poyments of fixed costs ond unpcid vorisble costs from
the pre-crisis peried, including agreements with government fiscal authorities on certain tox

poynments,

The loss before tax for the period of £33.5 milion {2019 £28.2 milion} is higher than last year drivernt by the
impact of ane-aff losses related o COVID-17. spacificaly provisions relaled to costs of refunds, conceled
shews and bad debt, coupled with reloted impairment charges bocked and increased depreciatien charge
as a result of the first full year of aczounting for all leases under IFRS16 — Leases. Loss afler Tax was £25.9 million
(2019 £31.5 million).

Capital structure and investrmeont

As of year-erd, our serion drawn faciities were £427 .4 million with an additionat £5.46 mitfon of undrown Tazilies
ternaining.  The malurity date of ihese facilities is 2023, Subsequent 10 the year end, que to the COVID-1$
sifuction, the Group entfered into discussions with cur lenders for a covenant amendment. This crmendment
enables the Group to adjust its covenants whilil o venues are closed or imited w opearations due to CCVID-
19, thereby reducing the risk of covenant defaull. As part of the amendment, o minimum iquidity covenant

ws infroduced. which requires the business 1o mainiain a certair level of cash.

The business continued its lovel of investrments in propery, plant ond intangible asscts, with £43.7 milion (2019;
£23.4 milion} invested in progperty, plant and equpme frefor to note 13), £6.2 milion (2019: £9.4 million)
investego in software and £7.4 million (2019 Enil) invested in pre-proguction relateg costs, as part of Cther

intangibles [refer to note 12).
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Advaonced ticket soles

Due to the COVID- 19 situation, the Group has been managng its obligations with regords to refunds on
agvance ticket sales for the pericd of suspended bookings by actively rescheduling performances to future
dates, ssung vouchers to use for future ookings os well as creating a temperery cal centre 1o process and

manoge the increased velume of customer refurd related enquines.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATCORS

Non-financial |
' Global Admissions Global Occupancy Number of fickets sold
12.3m 48.5% 9.5m
20192 12.0m} (2019 64.3%) (200 9: 2.0m)*
Financlal 5
Revenue Operating prafit
£476.7m £2.2m

{2019: £28.3m}

|
!
|
| (2019 £443.2m)
|
|
[
|

“BY figure resiated to inciude fickets sola by A1G as wall 05 all fee gerercting tickets,

The directors consider the financial ond operational performance ond pasition of the business using o range

of non-fincncial and firanciol metrics.
Nan-Financicol €Pls:

- Globeol cdmissiors [number of peopic ottending a performance thot has occured within the relevant
period} hove grown by Z.5% year on year. Growth in admissions are driven both by the increase in

our global venue portiolio as well os the strengthening in quality of content shown in our venues.

- Global cccupancy has increcsed by 4.2% yveor on yecr. indicating the strengthening of the guslity of

our content, Our globol occupancy of 68.5% indicales the furtrer headrcom for growth.

- Number of tickets sold {licket sale tronsactions duing the relevant pericd thot may be for
performances that maiure beyond the relevant periogd). has increcsed year on year by 5.5%. ariven

by the growth in venues as well as the impravemert of the content siote in the upcoming periods.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Financial KPls:

- Revenue hosincreased by £33.4 milion from 2015, driiven by increcsed sales as a result of better
content in the VS, ang the cpering of Harry Po-ter and the Cused Child in San Frongisco, Fiedse

refer to note 3 for geogrash'cal analysis of revenue.

- Operoting profil has decressed year on vear tg £2.7m (2019 £28.3 millon)] driven primarily Dy the
impact of COVID-1$ across the theofre industry, resuiting in one-off tosses specificatly gue 1o provisiaons
reated 1o costs of efunds, concelled shows ond bod detd, The Group has alss recognised
imparment charges this year, vs £nitin the PY and increased dopreciction charge as a resuli of the
first full year of occounting for all legses under IFRS16 - Le oses, has also contributed to the decreosed

profit,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the poriod-end is set oul in the consolidated s*atement of fincncial position on

pages 3¢ and 37. cnd in the related note on pages 41 10 %4,

- Cuash from cperaling activities hos increased by £14.5 milion driven by ¢ year on year increase in
operaling cash flows befoe working capital movements of £28.4 milion, olfsel by lower working

capitcl movements of £8.2 milion ang higher corparation tax payments of £3.7 million.

- Investing cash fiows include £54,1 milion {2019 £28.5 mliion) of copital expengiure ond intangizle
gsseis invested to improve the guclity of the verues os descorbed above and to invest in operatng
infrastructure and systems. offset by £1.% milion (2019 £0.3 milicn nct investment in show) net

recoupment in show investments in the perhod.

- Although nel senior debt is higher year on year, the closing cosh pasition of the Group is £40.1 miion
higher which includes an increased escrow bolonce of £8.8 million (2019: £7.4 million). Duning the
penod, £6%.4 milion [201%: Nil} was diown on the RCF focility, resulting i £5.46 milion {2019 £75

milkan} Being unutiised al the end of the veor.

Leveroge and liquidity

The Group performed comforiably within its net leverage covenan! trrcughout the period. The nelleverage
cavenant, specifically focuses on the drawn senior debt of the Group (refer o note 19) net of cash, which at
28 March 2020 wos £297.3 million (£358.0 million of senior deb? plus £69.4 million of RCF, net of cash {excluding

escrow) of £130.1 milian) was £30.% million highe: thar the prior vear ending bolance of £264.4 milion.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Casn As at 28 Morch 2020, the Group had cosh and cosh equivalents of £13%.1 millicn {2019:
£92.0 milior). Including escrow accourts which are held for use primarily in connection
with specific productions. The Group alic hod additiona! ovailckie facilifies of £5.6 milien
12019: £75.0 milion). The cash belance increases By £40.1 million 'n the seriod, of which

treely avoilable cosh increased ty £38.6 milicn.

£Em
Opercting cash flows 62.2
Investing cash fows (52.2)
; Fnoncing cash fiows 28.5
!
{ Met cash flows 38.5
[
Impoct of foreian exchange 1.8
Mavement on cash balance 40.1

Fnoncirg cash fiows include debt crawdowns of £69.4 mikion to improve immoedictc
iigquidity of the musiness, net of inance lease and short-term crodit faciity repoymaonts of

£18.0 mitkon, ond interest paid of £22.9 millon,

Borrowings  The Group has totol avoilable bonk focilities of £433.0 million. of whict 5.6 millien remairs

undcrawn af the perocd end.

| The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group.
| The senior facilitics cgreement olso requires the Group 1o compty with cortain covenants.

As at 28 March 2020, the Group was in compliance with ifs covenants,

The Group alo hes other geb! items, which ore secured cgaind the assels of its

shareholder, of £84.4 milion (2019 £82.6 millon). Interest is non-cash paying ana accrees

ol a wolal rate of LIBOR plus 1.5%. Thoel debt is secured over the assets of the Group's

shareholder, and the facilty expires in 2023, There is a finonce iease creditor of £177.2
| million [2019: £89.7 million).

The meturity of the debt is shown in notes 1%, 20 and 27 to the financiol statements,
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FY21 wall be significantly a'fected by the COVIR-1S pandemic, with fie mgjerity of our venues around the

wond potenticly closed at least until December 2020,

Allhough we believe tha! aur business wil net be impocted in the jong run from the COVID-19 pandemic, we
have condusted on impoimment review ab our ossets in the cantexd of petentiol shart-term implications, The
assets with the highest risk of impairment are production assets, where although the intellectual craperty
continwes o have vaiue in the long run. the volotiity of when each production might be able fo refure ic the
stage, the cost of a relounch, as well as the demand scenarios of audiences bas been reviewead in the [ight
of the risks of COVID-1%. Based on this assessment as of 28 March 2020, we have impaired ocur preduction
assets by £13.1 miion. Depending on the re-cpening chalienges irclueding the jength of ciosure and the
uiceteinty of gudience demond, there may be a sk of further impoirment in FYZ1, however, G reasonable
estimate cannot be mage at this time. We tave toker adventage of the UK Governiment's Job Retention
Scheme, which allowed us to continue fo empioy a great number of our staff, whilst reducing the fincncial
burdei an our ausiness. In loly 2020, we tock the decision to begin a redundoncy cansultation, whicr led to
the reducticnin the number of our statt rom August 2620. This decision was diticult to toke but was a necessary
action of the directors anc sharehaldens 1o prolect the ongoing nature of the business. In Germony. we have
placed the mejority ot our emp cyees on the Kurzarbeit program, where the govemment provides an “income

replacement” rote ot 60-47% ot the employee's salary.

Dur teams continue to cosely monitor this everchanging situation, and we are confident thol once our venues
have e -opened. we will see a resurgence in altendonce. as the pent up demand for live ententcinment can
be realised. As o business, we are clready pianning for this opportunity, ang are excited o welcome back

visitars in lorge numbers,

Subseguent 10 the year end. the directors have confinued to seek aiternotive sources of finance. On 11
September 2020, the shareholders of the Group have signed o definitive agreement to secure funding which
is intended for the Group. As of the date of these fincncial stotements, negotiations remain ongoing with the

Group's sharehaiders as to the extent and timing of funds thot will be made ovoiloble to the Group.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong fundamentals inat undetpin the theatical industry combined with the quality of our porticlio of
venues contribule o the Directors’ confidence in fhe long term growth of The basness in future yeas, In ordes
ta withstand the current chalienges of COVID-19, the Group will continue 1o judiciously monitor ifs cost boase
in order to regduce ils liquidity requitements whilsl ensuing thal we cre cdequalely prepared for a speedy

return o operations.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

CORFPORATE AND SQCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the impartonce of i environmental responsibilifies, monitors s impact on the
ervironment, and designs ond implements appropriate polcies te minimise any damage that might be

causad by the Group's activities.

Az reported in the 2019 annual report, venues are required 1o complete their own Project Blackou! surveys ar
lcast annually. The project identifies overnight energy waste issucs and engeacs with senior management,
venue staft and the Group's Environmentol Ambassaders to implenment simple “switch off” salutions, Results of
ine surveys hrghlght coolinued nsiaiotion of LED bulbs, including sensor controls. with some venues
prooressing to guarterly mint blackout surveys. In the US, the Lyric Thegire ond Kings Theclre, bolh use LED
bulbs in lobbies and the auditonum. There cre proarammed night modes around the venues to reauce energy
consumption, Procecural and behovicural change remains the focus for continual improvement for energy

efficiency.

The UK Facliities team deliverea a returtishmert ot cur Charing Cross Road office. which pravided increased

seating capacity and lowered the enerqy usage as a result of switching to LED lighting.

Cur Feople
Number of employeas at 28 March 2020 Women Men Total
Direzrom olthe company ’ 4 5
Ctnes ten o ~anage~en’ < 40 64

ay
n
rx
e
(o]
Eal
(28 ]

4.419

Erpoyees:

The Group complies with ail relevant legislation including those specilically targeled ot preventing
discrimination. Such principles cre embedded through the organisction by the requisite policies. The Group
is committed to ensuring the heclth. sotety and welfore of its emplayees as far as is reasonably practicable.
The Group seeks 10 ensure that statutory duties ore met af all fimes and that it operates effective health ond

satety monagement,

The Group's policy is to cansult and discuss with empioyees. through unions, stoff councils. meetirgs anc
company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect employvees’ interests, informaton on matters of concemn to
employees is given througn information bulteting and raports which segk to achieve O common awareness en

the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors offecting the Group's performance.

The Group continues to runits “Be g Star” and “Be a Star Manager” training programmes, tocusing on Front of

House and Box Office stoft trom when tney join the Group, developing their tkills to improve customer

experience, ond furlher aleng the ling, the key cspacts of people management. Tne Group also runs o two

yeor “Rising Sior” pregramme for some of our highest potential junior staff as wel as ¢ leadership course {or
fs]



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

senior managers “Leading Lights”. In FY20, we launched our sxth cohaort of Rising Stars, and o third Leading

Lights class.

Tne Groug's policy is 1o recrut dsabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill, Al necessary
assistance with initial raining courses is given, Once employed, g career plan is developed so as 1o ensure
suitch'e oppartunities for each disobled persos. Arrangements are made. wherever possinle. far retraining
cmployees who become dsabled, to enabkle them o pedormwork ioentified as appropriate 1o their gptiudes

and ahilifies.

We cantinue 1o supoort interral engogement initiatives such as Internaticncl Women's Day, Price anc Mental

Health Awcreness week, with more people getting involved in all geographies.

Social and Communily Involvernent

Tne Groug recognises ‘hal recicnal theotres, ot in the UK and USA, are rooted in the heart of their locol

commyrities.,

Many of the UK regichol thecotres have Creative Leaming departments which take o leading role in
cantributing to the social cohesion of ther communties in partnersnip with chadties, frusts ons organisations
natorwide. inC uding severcl local authorities ond turther ecucation gartners. Over the course of a year,

Cregtive Learning con boast mere than 70,000 paticipants ¢ gl oges ond abilities throughout the U

feopl: of a wide varely of ages and abilifies participaie in the Group's Crearive Learning activities, Ofren
inapired by the preductions at venpes, these can include workshops with visiting comganies, bocksioge tours
and pre-show talkes, and alia Youlh Theatees, surmmern schools andg classes Tor adulls, in addition to this, many

reqrord! venues are used for several weeks a year by local amaoteur produclion companies.

On Broadway, Lyric Thectre hotts an outism friendly performarce of Homy Potter ond the Cursed Chilg,
erlghtening more than %00 children ond adJls whe are ciognosed with an autism spectrum disorder or cther
sensitivity issues and their famiies and friends. Portnering with Theatre Development Fund (TDF}, slight
adjustments fo the producton haove been made so *het the show s presenied in g fiendly. supportive
ervironmeni. Hudson Theatre hosts the 52nd §t. Proiect at a performance of David Byrne’s Americon Utopic,
Founded in 1981, the 52nd 5treet Project is ¢ community-based orts organization, with a missicn to bring
together kics frem Hel 's Kilchen in Manbatian with thecter professioncls to create onginol thecter offered free
to the genergl public. Teeragers from the arganizotion's songwriting group enjoyec the show ond were
delghtedly surprdsed by g "Meet & Greet” with David and the entire bond ofter the performance. The evening
olso sorved cs o funcraiser for the Project where money roised would support the beloved non-profit

organizetion.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategc Report hos beer prepared solely 1o provide information 1o shareholders 1o astess how the
directors iigve performed their duty to promoie the succest of the Group. The repon cantains certam fonward-
looking siaiemeanis, which e made by the direciors in goed feitn besed on the information availabie fo them
at the fime thet the report was signed. but are subject to inherent uncertointies underlying any forward-looking

informaotion crnic os such should be freaied with caution,
APPROVAL

This report was aporoved and authotised for issue by the Bogard of Diectors on 23 September 2020 and

signed on its behalf by:

ShanMae Teo

irector



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDEC 28 MARCH 2020

RESPECT OF THEIR PERFORMANCE OF THEIR SYATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTNON 172(1)
COMPANIES ACT 2006

Tne Board of Directorns of Interngticnal Entertainment Holdings Limiten consider, both indivicuolly ond together,
trat they have cotled in the woy they corsider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of
tre Group for the benefit of its stakeholders as 2 whole (having regard 1o the stakeholders and matiers set out

inscclion 1721 (o f1 of the &gt in the decisions iaken doring the period ended 28 March 2020,
St72(1) A "The likely consequence of any declsion in the long term”

Tne Directors have taken the decisions that they believe bost support IEH's strategic embitions. dore

informmaton con pe found unoer 'Future Developmends’ on poge 8.
$172{1} B “The interest of the Group's employees”

Tre Girectorns recogaise that IEH empaoyess are fundomental and core to our basingss and the delivery of our
shrategic ambit'ons. An ancugl employvee "Company Day’ deliverec in London proviges a briefing on the
Group's performance and aliows indgividyals to raise cuestions and cancerns, The Groupr moritars ity
employes's commiment 1o 4y guiding fromework by asking memberns of senicn manogement to subntl an

anrucl deckurotion confierminrg whether they bave campied with the Group's Code of Corduct,

It any enp oyes wishes to highlight any potentiol breaches to the Code ot Concuct, they cen contact the
incependent whist eblowing services provider and o formol investigoton toliows, with anonymous reporting 1o
tre Audit Cormmiitee. Annugl empioyee engagemert surveys are performed 1o highlighs areos of
im@rcvement in communication of the Group's purpose. The Boord consicers the results of all empoyee
ergagement surveys a good barometer of the worklorce's contidence in the Group's strategic direction,

optimism in the fuiure and career cpportunities.
More information con be founa under "Qur People’ on page 16,
$172(1) C “The need fo fosfer the Group’s business relafionships with suppllers. cusiomers and others”

The: Group's stakeholders are custormers, proaucens, suppliars, employees, sharghalders and lenders ond the
Boord recognises the need to reguiany review the identity of its slakehelders as it makes cecisions. The Board

promotes accountchility andg tronsparency with gl stakehislders.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The Group's funcamenia belief i1 promofing the pubic good is demansirated and supported by awr Senior

Leadership’s active engagement across industry bodies ond cur stakeholdar community,

Tre Group fracks customer sctisfochon in several ways, A comprehensve Mystery Shopgar Progremme s in
ploce with regular visits to gl UK venues providing scores and practcal feedback across Customer
Engogement, Service Excellence. Theatre Presentolion and Selling Skills. This process is run by an external
compony 1o ensure indepencence. The findngs ore vsed to improve customer engagement with knowiedge
being sharec acress al of our business. Onling we continuously frack and report on customer interactions ond
sentiment across social media, in August 2020 our Trust Pilot score reached 4,7 stars out ©f o possip'e 5 and

70% of the overall reviews rate us as 'Excellent” o 'Great”.

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting ang Poyment Practices and Performance Repcorting, both of
which are published exterrally. The addifional analysis requirec to conduct this reporing has highlighfed scme
areas on which the Group reeds toimprove. The Group welcomes these changes as it is looking to constontly
improve in its engagement with ol stckeholders. The Group communicates cpenly with the Chair ot the
pension frustee, who is independent of the Group. The trustees comprise individugls nominoted by boh the
pension scheme members and the Group. These relationships are key o ensunng that the cecisions made Dy

beth the Group and the scheme reflect the interes® of all stoxehoiders.
5172{1) D “The impact of the Group's operations on the community and the environment”

The Direciors recognise the imporiance of their environmental responsibifities. More getoiis can be found

under "Enviranmentol maotiers’ on page 146 and '‘Community Involvement’ an poge 17.
$172{1) E "The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct”

The Group has zero tolerance for madern sliavery, brivery ang otner torms of coruption, We implement anc
entorce etfective systems to counter madearmn slavery. bribery and corfupticn cnd have interncl policies in
picce to educate owr employees about how to recognise and deal with these issues so os to ensure

compliance with laws.
We remain commitied to combatling modern slavery, bnbery and cormuplion by:

- AUgiting our supp y chains:
- Training our stoff to recognise these issues;

- Manitoring potential risk Gcross our business,

we have a dedicated whistleblowing service for cur employces 1o report misconduct or unethicol practces

and have o policy which clearly sets out how members of stoff can raise cny concerns which they may have.

Deitnils of our code of canduct and modern sigvery can be found on the ATG websile:

Bps/ fwww. slg.couidatg-mooern-savery-and-human-t sificking-stotement

20
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STRATEGIC REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

S$172(1) F “The need to act fakly as beiween members of the company”

Al every Boorg meeting. the Direclors review with the monogement team. the: progress against strategic

priorities ond the changing shape of the bysiness portfalic.

This colicborctive cpproach by the Boord, fogether with the Board’s cpproval of the Group sirotegy, heps i

to promote the lang-tenm success of the Group. Boord cecisions are takett agoinst the backdrog of what it

considers to be in the best inferest of the long-term ‘financial success of the Group and Hs stokeholders,

inciuding shoreholders, employees. the community ana envirenment, our suppiiers ond customers.

Principol decisions

We outline some of the principal declsions maoe by the Board over the year anc explain how the Directors

nove considered voriows stekeholders over the course of decision-meking.

Harry Paolter Hamburg

Tre Board approved the refuryishment of cur theatre in Harmburg in order 10 converd it from a one
nighter music venue to a thechs capable of housirg lona ronning sit down musicaly and pleys. The
Board also approved thot the first preduclion for the Homburg theatre would be the play Harry Fotler
and the Cursed Chid, Ay o groundbreaking show, the Boarg considered i important 1o be cbile to
maxe this play availabie to non-English speakers, German spearing fons ore able 1o clitend the snow
which is presented in German without having 1o travel to ofner regions, The members of the Board
were salisfied that the refurbishment and hesting of tne show wouid resull in g long-term positive effect
lor the Group ana would tring with it further opporiunities for growth by enhancing our reputation as
o producer one venue operator. The Board alse considered the impact of the show onits employees.

noling that a new long running show such as this would create more job cpportunities for siaff.

Harry Polter Tokyo

The Boord approved the venlure {o partner with owr key Joponese counterparts to present Hary
Potter and The Cursed Chila in Tokyo in Japanese. The Board considered il importan! te be able o
make this ploy available 10 the large lanbase in Jopan, The members of the Board were satished that
tre prozucing of the show would result in o long-term positive effect for the Group and would bring

with it furiher cpporunities for growth by improving our relations with parinersin the Japanese morket.

in-house F&B development

in 4 of our venues in the US, we previously engaged a third-party operator 1o provide FAB services,
Tre Board considered it prugent to bring this operation in-house . Bringing the operalions in-house hos
alowed us to make use of economies of scole in lerms of purchosing which drives retums for
shareholgers ang has the potential 1o reduce cost for customers whilst improving the service offering
in lerms of the range and guolily of producis that we are able 1o provide. This nas abo ollowed the
Group to create furiher synerges wilh the existing venue teams in thase venues moking il easier {or

venues to manage Ineir own budge!s.
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4. The development and roll-out of our new ticketing front end system known as Botlt
As an e-commerce busingss it s important to continue to evolve 16 retain customers. The members of
the Board were satisfied that the deveicpment and roll-cuf of the Bolt plotform was animporiant step
for the Group to 1ake to imprave the vser experience {or our customers, Improved conversion raefes as
aresult of the impreved user exoenence would in tam drive higher returas far our producing partners

and aur shareholcers.

5. Introduction of a Chilel Security Information Officer
As an e-commerce business which nandies large volumes of cusicmer data, it was deemec prucdent
to acpant a Cnief Security Infarmation Officer to continue to build on e IT secuwrity programs that
are cuTently on-going witnin the business. The members of the Boord were satisfied thot the

appointment woud resu tin o leng-term positive etfect for the Group. Key consigerations incluged.

- Ensuring security of custamer cato

- Reintorcing confidence in owr systems for cur partners

- Mitigating security risks ang date breaches which con domage the brand and reputction of our
business which could ultimately depress earnings ‘or sharehoelders, anc

- Ensuring thot o culture of security and awareness is embedded across our business ard in

particular for employees who ore the eors and eyes of our business.

4. COVID-19 Pandemic Response
As of the middle of March 202G, lockdowns in the UK, Germany anag the USA had heen imposec by
their respective governments. This aclion in the UK whils! teken one week prior 1o the government
imposed UK wide lockdown, was deemed prudent ang necessary in arder o help cenhiol the spread
of COVID 19 and protect the health and safety of cur employees. customers, producing partners’

company ard crew and contractors who enter our premises,

In response to the COVID-1%9 Pondemic and grior 1o our closure on 17 Marcn 2020, the Board hod
already taskec its Business Continuity Committee 1o focus on implementing our business continuity
pians. The pre-closure actions implemsntled by the Business Contnuity Committee ensured that oll
non-venue based work could continye remolely including our contec! centes which have been key

to maintcining contact with our alfected customers.

Tris commiltee cordinues 1o work or crisls monagerment and key decision making in ordear to ensure

tkat our Husiness remains rabust despite the challenging chmate we confinue 1o operate in,
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Mark Cornell, Chief Execulive Officer

wMork Correll was anpointed Group CEC of the Aambassedor Theahe Group in Moy 2214, Prior to th's he was
Managirg Director of Sotheby's Furcpe and preceding that, spent 10 years at LYMH, including President and
Chief txecutive Officer of Moe® Hennessy USA ond Chief Executive Officer of Krug Chompagne, Mork hos
vast cxperience in managing large organisations, cs well as successtully lecding consumer-criericied brands

in the UX, Furope and the USA,
Anthony Ball, Non-Execulive Chairman

anthony Ball bocame Chalrman of intermational En-ertainment HelZings bmited in Decomber 2016 ong has
been a senior advisor of Providence Equity Partners since 2013, He has had ¢ long and successful coreer in
tne media and enfedainment irdusides in the UK anag interrationally, as chairman of Kabe! Deutschiand from
2005 10 2013 ond as CEO of BSkyB. the largest pay TV broadcaster in Ewrope. Prior to this, he wos the CEQ of
the News Corporation/Liverty Meoia joint verture, Fox/Liberty Networes, which ingluded the FX Networks, Fox
Sporty Net ond aver 25 regional spors chonnels througho ot the S, He w o non execulive director of 8T Group
and chairmen of Petland Communicaticns, Aqtheny teceived o MBA from Kingston University and hos been

aworded henorery doctorctes frorm both Middlesex University ang Kirgston University.

$inlsa Xinic, Non-Executive Directlor. Providence Equity Partners

Sinsa Krred 15 g director at Providence Eauity Portners, based in Loncor and is responsible for Furopecn fax
structuting ang complicnce. Prior o joining Providence in 2007, §'n'sa worked at Deloitte tor nne years and
roost recently served ¢ ¢ director n the mergern and acquisiions tax group. Sinisa received g Master of Phys'cs

from Oxord University,

David Leigh, Non-Executive Director

Dovia Leigh joined *he International Enteriairment Holdings Limited boarg as ¢ non-execulive director in
Qctober 2015, He is CEC at Alexander mann Solutions, a role he has held since Novembier 2019, Prior fo
joining Alexander onn, David was CEQ of Study Group, and prior 1o thal was CEQ of SHL. Prior 1o 3HL, he was
on the Executive Commitiee of Groupe Steria. with responsibility 1or Business Process Oubsourcing. David's
eqrher background was in private eguity (iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Attantic Pariners and the Boston Consulfing Group]. consulfing {(McKinsey & Cof and faw (Herbert Smihj.
Dovic has ar MA in Social and Political Sciences frem Cambriage Universily and o post-graduate legal

qualitication from the College o Law, Lonaon.
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ShanMae Teo, Chiet Financial Officer

Belfore joining the executive teamin june 20146, ShanMoe waos o non-execulive dirgctor of the Comgpany and
a director af Providence Equity Portners. Frior to joining Pravidence Equity Partpers in 2007, ShanMaoe wos @
consultant a* Bain & Compony in Londen, where she focused on projects for privole equity and corporole
clients in industries incleding communications ond information services, consumer progucts and utilites, Prior
to Bain, she was with pM/C Venture Partaers, a venture capital firm focused on communications services
irvestments, Frevicusly. Shantize worked at agero and Salomen Smith Bomey, Shanivae recelved o Maostor

of Busingss Administralion from INSEAD and g Bachelor of Science from Beston Colege.
Robert Sudo, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Rebert Sude is ¢ managing direston ¢f Providgence Equiy Poriners, He is abo o director of Bité, Closer $ilt Mediq,
HSE24, MasMEvi: eno Vol Limilea, Prior fo joining Providence Equity Partners in 2004, Robert worked os an
analys! for Goeldman Sachs in mergers ang ocauisitions ond corporate finance, He received a Dipioma in

Husiness aAdmenistration from HAL Leiprig Graduate Schoo! of Management,

Andrew Tisdale, Non-Executive Direclor, Providence Equity Partners

andrew Tisdale s a managing director of Providence Equity Partners. He i alie o director of Crime
Communication. Closer $ill Medig and HSEZ4, Prior 1o joining Provigence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew was
gonal co head of the media ond communicalions group and a member of Morgan Stanley's marogemen?
committee for invesiment barking. During his 18 yeor tenure ot Morgan Stanley, Andrew helz various roles
within invesiment banking, including ¢o-head of the media and communicalions group for North and Scuth
Aamerico and. subseguently, the same role for Europe, 1he Middle Eas? ond Aflica, He olso led Morgaen Stanley's
investment Ganking activities in Brazil, Andrew received g Master of Business Administration from the University
of North Caroling of Chapel Hil and o Bochelor of Arts from Vanderbilt University. He currently serves on the

Booard of Acvisors for the Yale School of Droma,
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The Jirectors present treir repont and the audited financiol statements for the period ended 28 March 2020.
The directors consider the anrual repart ond financiol statements to comply substonticlly with ot aspacis of

the “"Guidelines tor Disclosure and Transoarency in Private Equity™.
DIRECTORS

The directors who served durng the period and to the date of signing the finoncial sta‘ements {excest as

noted) were:

Anthony Ball
tark Comell
Siniga Krnid:
David Leigh
Rabert Suda
Shanvae Teo

Andrew Tisdale

The bicgraphies of the current directors are presented on page 23 1o 24,

Tre Group is mojority owned by Provigence Equily Partners through its investnent funds, Providence Equity
Portners VIl A 1P and Providence VI Global Holdings LP, Providence tquity Pariners is ¢ global allernctive
investment firm esiablished in 1989 focused on educalion. medic. communications. and information
investments, The firm's private equity platform specialises in sector-focused buyout fronsoctions and growth

capitalinvestments, Providence Equity Partners made its invesimient in the Group through iE Luxco 5.4,

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company hos made qualilying third-party indemnity pravisions for the benefl of its directors which were

made during the period and remain in force af the date of this repor.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss 107 the penod after toxation ameuntes to £25.9 million {20192 £31.5 million).

No dividends have been paid during the curent period {2019 £10.% million). No dividends are proposed ir

respect to the current period.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the dale of approval of these finoncial staternents, the impact of COVID 9 pn the Group's hading
confinues to be assessed and is subject to rapid y changing exlemnal fectors, including evalving government
respionses 1o control he spread of the virus and cnpoing changes in custorner sentimen! towards atending

live: entertainment events,

Due o0 the measures tcken by govemments worldwide o controt the COVID-19 outbreox, the lve
ertertainment industry came to ¢ stands-ill from the second halt of March 2020, with all our venues being

closed for aperations.,

Prior to mid-Marcn 2020, the Group kad positive tragding witr o programming schedule of highly successtul
shows suppoting strong operctionol performance across oll of its femitories. We were in a strang finanzial
positor with al covenants under the terms of our locns being met. Unfortunately. the clasure of our venues
and the absence ot ¢ firm re-opening date has resulted in a sharg drog in tumover, Qur maneting senvices
businesses ore ko expenencing a drog in turnover os many of our customers are in the ive entertainment
and cuturol & heritage sectors {museums, galieries, zoos); all of which hove had restricticns on thelr opergtions
during COVID-19. whilst there has been a coresoongding resuction i vorlobie costs os o resull of the closure

of cur venves, the Group continues 1o have to fund its fiked cost bose.

in order lo preserve liguidity and mifigate the impac) of the fixed cost bose duing the ariss penod, the

Direclors of the Group have faken the following measures:

- creoted a Business Continuity Committee. which hos been focuscc an crsis management and key

dercision moking:
- oangong engagemeant with all cur stakeholzers. including our shareholders and lenders:

implementation of bi-weekly cosh flow Forecosts o manage liguidily o) o granutar jevel throughow

the Group:
- robust scencrio modeng to drive decision making;

- proactive manogement of rescheduling shows to future deotes to minimize the level of show

cancelations and therefore refunacs:

- asgrilicant elerment of the Group's cost base elates 1o wages and salaties. Wnerg passible, and
subject to local regulations, stoffing levek and hours worked have been reduced. Employees,
including sertior management and directors, have alse undertaken salary sacrfices, Government
supporn poth in the UK in the form of the Job Retention Scheme and in the Germany in the form of the

Kurzarbeil pragrem has been uliised to offsel daffing costs thaf continue to be incurred;
- copilal expendilure hos been rephosed and prionitized on essentiol maintenance: ond

- actions have been token to deter or permanentty reduce payments of tixcd costs ond unpaid
variable ¢osts from the pre-cisis perod, including agreements with Government fiscol cuthorities on

certgin iax payments.
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Sensifivilies are 1un 10 reflect different scenanos for when theatres might be able to re-open during the 12-
maonth period from the date of the cpproval of these financial statements. This is done To identify ssks ‘o licuidity
and covenant compionce ond enable management to lormulate appropriate and timely mitigation

strategies.

Based on these forecasts and other foctors which may impact the Groug's future fionicity position. the
Diecton have concluaed that 1 is aporopricte to prepare the financial staterments on a gong concern basis.
However, given that the COVID 19 stuation continues to evolve. there exists a maternial uncerainty related to

everis of condgitions that may cast significant doutat about the Groap's ability to confinue as a going concern,
Tne events or conditions are as foliows:

- Trefunding reguirement tor the next 12 months ranges signiticently based on the re-opening scenarios
tor theatres. in terms of re-opening oates, potenticl restrictions on how our venues can cpearate (e,
sociar cistancing requirements), and the leve! of demand from audiences. At present, gavernments
in cities where we aperate continue to advise that theatrical venues either should remain closed or

only allowed 10 be open vitually or with social distoncing megssures;

Tre Group: hoids £432 million of committed facililies which are subjec! to nel everage and liquickty
cavenonis, There is g reduced nsk of defoult on the net leverage covenart due 1o a recent
amendment which allows Tor an adiustment 1o nel ieverage covenant lesting whilst theotres are
closad by govemnments due to COVID-19. However, the Group is ala subject 1o a minimuem iguidity

covenant.

The Group hos not current kociities of £168.7 milion (2019 £117.9 milion} ang nct assets of £29.0 milion {2019
£6% .9 milior| at the periog-cnd date. Net current ligbilities incluge advanced ticket sales of £142.4 million
(2019; £139.0 milicn}. which represents ticket sates for shows thot hove yet to mature with @ portion of this
omount duc to How to the Group. Excluding cdvance ticket sales and non-retundable gronts, the Group hos
ligkilities cue within cne year of £187.0 milion {2019: £124.1 milion) which ore exceeded by curent assets of
£206.5 mitlion, {2019: £143.3 milicn},

Tne Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow oocounts, in its bonk accounts of £69.8 millien cs at
the date of opproval of these tinancicl statements. The Group has receivec an equity commitment ot £50
milion from its shareholders, of which £30 milion nas been drawn, with £20 milion of undrawn avaiiability, (f we
are aliowed tc open in December 2020 without any social distoncing and ficket sales rebound in November,
the Group will have sufficient cash to meet the minimum liquidity covenant. If our re-opening is delayed

beyend December with 0 corresponding deloy in ticket soles, additionst funding would be required,

In order 1o mitigote the risks highlighted above, the Directors are engaging with the Group’s sharehotders cne
lenzers 1o explore funding solutions. As of September 11, the sharehalders of the Group have signed o
defiritive ogreement 1o secure funding which is intended for the Groun. As at the date ol this report, there i
neG commitment of funds to the Group but negolictions with the shareholders ore cdvanced and the Directors
have o regsonable expectation thol these will conclude shorfly. {f the re-opening dale lor thealres without
socia dislancing due 1o COVID-1% s delayed beyond December 2020 and ir the unlkely scenario where

addifona’ funding does not occur, thete it a risk that the Group may breach the minimom Faguidity covenant
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during the 12 menth geing concem assessment period, 11 here s a breach of cuch covenant and such breach
is not cured by the shareholcers pursuant e the cure right under the fnoncing documeants, ther the lenders

caould recuest 1hal the locns be repaia.

Notwithstnding this materior uncerainty, the Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, s anility 1o
manage s guidity requirernents, the status of the curent funding discussions, confidence in the continued
support of ow sharebaolders, and the long tern potenticl of the busmess farms the basis of owr preporation

of the finangial stalements on o going concermn Deosis.
MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certocin matlers (post balance sheet events, future deveopments. priacipal nsks gngd urcertainties anc
empioyee matters) ore discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporotec inta the Drectors’ Report ty

reterence.
AUDITOR
Each of the persons whao is o direcor at the date of apgrovel of this onnudl repor confirms that:

- so for gs the director is aware, there s norelevant audit informationr of which the Compuany s auditor is

unaware; ard

- the drector has token all the steps thot he/she ought to have faken as a director in order to make
himselt/nerself aware of any relevont audit intormation and tc establish that the Company’s auditor is

aware of that information.

This confirmation i given ond should be interpreled in accordance wih the provisions of 5418 of the

Compaonias Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed their wilingress to continue n office as auditor and ¢ resaluticn to reappoint them

will be proposed at the forthcoming Annua!l General Meeting.

This rseport was approved ond cuihorised for issue by the Board o Direclors on 23 September 2020 and signed

onits behalf:

ShanMae Teo
Director

Registered office
25 §5t. George Streef, London
W15 2FA. United Kingdom
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financia: statements in accogarce

with applicable iow and regulctions.

Company law requires the cirecton to prepare financial stalements for eoch financial period. Under that low
ire direclors hove elecied ‘o prepore the linancial sliotements in accordence with Inlernclional Fnancial
Repaorting Stancards [IFRSs) as adopted by the Furcpean Union, Under compony tow the directors must not
approve the financial statements urless they are satisfied that they give o frue ond farr view of the stote of
affaits of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Compaony for inat period, In preporing these financia!

staterments, International Accounting Stondard | requires that directors:

- eropeany select ane cpply occounting polcies;

- present information, including accounting policies, i1 ¢ monner thet provides resevart, relable,
comparable and understangable infarmation;

- provice additionot aisclosures when complionce with the specific recuirements in IFRSs cre insufficient
to encble users to understand the impact of particular transactions, ather events and conditions o
the entity’s finanoia: position ang fincncial performonce; and

- make on assessment of the Cempany's ity 10 confinue as a gons concem.

The directors are responsitle far keeping cdecuate accountinrg records that are sufficient o show ard explsin
tne Caompany's tfransactions and @isclose with reasonable accuracy at any fime the fingncial postion of the
Company and enable them to ensure 1hal the fingncial stctements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
Thesy are alsc resparsible for sofeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for laking reasonable steps

for the prevertion and detection of fraud and other ireguiorifies.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and tinanciol information
inciuded on the Company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom goverring the oreparction andg

dissemination of tinancial statements may differ trom legisiation in ofner jurisdiction:s.
We confirrm that to the bed of aur knowledge:

- the firancia staternerns. prepored in occordonce with the relevon: financial reporting fromework,
give o truc and fair view of the assets, liablities, finonciol position and profit or loss of 1he Company

gnd the underlakings included in the consoiidation taken o5 g whele:

29




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued)

- the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the develapmen! and performance of the business ond
the pasition of the Company ard the underckings inclodec in the consolidation toker os a whoie,
together with a descriplion of the onncisal fisks and uncertainties that they toce: and

- the anrual report and financial statements, token a3 awhale, are tair, bolonced and undersiandable
ond provide the information necessory for shareholders 'o cssess the Group's perfarmance, Business

model and strategy.

Tnis responsibility s*atement was opproved by the Board ¢f Directors on 23 September 2020 and is signed cn

its beholf by;

ShanMoc Teo

Director
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Repor on the audit of the financlal statements

Opinion
In our opinicn,

- teefirandial stotements of Indemational Entertainment Holaings timited [the ‘porent company')
ancd it subvdiores [the group’) give @ true and o view of the state of the gronp’s tma of the
poren! compeny’s aflair as at 28 March 2020 ane of the Group's loss for the pernioc then ended;

- tre Group fingncial statements have been properly prepared in occordance with International
Financial Reporfing Standards (1FRS] s adopted Dy the Eurcpean iior:

- treporent company linencial statements hove been properly prepored in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union and oy appled n accordance with the provisiens of the
Companies Act 200¢; ond

- ire fimarcicl stelements have been preporeq it accordance with the regurements of the

Compuaries Acl 2006,

We have audited the inancial daltemenls which comprise:

- the consolizated stotement of comprehensive income;
the consolidated and porent company staternents of fimancial positions
the consolidated ond porent cempany statements of chonges in equity;
the consolidated statement of cash flows;

e related notes 1 1o 31,

The inancicl reporting framewerk that has been applicd i their preporation s appliccble law and IFRSs as
adopted by the Buropean Union ard, as regards the parent company financial stotements, as cpplied in

gccordonce with the provisions of the Companics Act 2036,

Basls for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)] ond
applicabie lave. Qur respensibilities under those stondargs cre further describec in the ouditor's responsibilities

for the audit of the financict statements section of our report.

we are independen! of the group and the parent compony i accardange with the ethical requirements that
are relevant 1o our oudit of the: financial statements in the UK, inciuding the Finendial Repoing Council's {the
FRC's'} Ethica Slanzard, and we have Fifilled our olhar ethical responsioiiies in accordance with hese
reguirements, We believe thel the audit evidence we hove oblained is suflicient and approprizie to provide

Q bHasis for gur opinion,
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Material uncertainty related to going concern

We drow attention to note 1in the finarcial statements, which indicctes that due to the uncertginty driven by
the chgoing COVID-19 pardemic, the Group's future fiquid'ty position and comolionce with s liquidity
cavenont is uncertain. Tnis is due to uncertainty arouna venue re-opening dates, potential restrictions on how
tne Group's venues wil be able to aperate, ond the level of demans from audiences. The Directors ore
uncertoking negotiations ta rase addtional funging by December 2020, howaver this has not been securec
at the cate of cpproval of the tinanciat statements. As stoled in nate 1. these events or canditions, clong with
tne other matters gs set forth in nete 1 to the tinancial stctements, incicate that a maoteral uncertzinty exists
that moy cost significant doubt on the Group's abilty to continue as ¢ qoing concern, Cur opinion is not

qualifiec or otherwise modified i respect of this matter,

Other information

The directors are respensible for the other information. The other information camprises the information
incuded in the annuael repatt, other thon the financicl stolements and ouwr cuditor's repart thereon. Ouwr
opinicn on the fitancia statements does not cover the olher infarmation and, except 1o the exient otherwise

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with aur audit of the tinanciol stafements, our responsibiity is to recd the other information and,
in coing so, consider whether the other information is matericlly inconsistent with the financial statements or
oJdr knowledge obtained in the oudit or otherwise oppears o be materially misstoted. it we identity such
matenal inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required ta determine whether there is a
material msstaternent in the finoncial statements or o materiai misstotement ot the other information. if, based
on the work we hove performed, we conclude that there is o matericl misstatement of this other intormation,

we are required 1o regort that tact.

We have nothing to report inrespect of these matiers,

Responsibilities of directors

As exploined more fully in the direclors' responsibilities statement. the directors ore responsible for the
preparaiion of the financicl statemenis and for being safieliec that they give o frue and fair view. and for such
internal contral as the directors determine is necessary 1o enakble the preparation of financial staterments that

are free rom material misstatement. whether due te fraud or emor,

in preporing the fimancial statements, the dirgctors ore responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company’s ohility 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the group or

the parent compeany or to cegse operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do se.
Auditor's responsiblilities for the audit of the financlal statements

CQur obiectives are 1o obtain recsonable assuronce aboul whelher the financial slatements as o whole are

free from matenal misstalement, whether due te fraud or errgr, ond ta issue con auditor's repor! thal includes

32



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

our opinicn. Reascnable assurance is © high level of assuronce, but 18 not ¢ guorariee Inat an audit
conducted in cccordance with 1SAs (UK wil oways detec! o matericl misstaterment when it exiss.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errer ond are considered material if, individudily or m the aggragete,
they could reasonably be expected to infivence the economic decisions of users 1aken on the basis of these

financial stetements.

A further descnptlion of our esponsbiities for the cudit of the nanciyl stelerments is iocated on the FRC's

website at; wwee b0 orgLesfauaitoreesponsibilitics. Th's descrigtion forms part of cur audior's report,
Report on othet legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

in our opinicn. besed orn the work undertaken in the couse of the audit,

the information given in the shategic report and the directors’ repart far the finoncicl year far whicn
the finoncicl statements are prepared is consistent with the financiol statements; and
the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with asplicable

legal requircrnents.,

in the lght ¢ the knowledge ¢ng undestonding of the group and of the parent company onc their
ervironmant obtaned ir the course of the audit, we have not identified any moterial misstatemenss in the

strategic report ar the directars’ report.
Matters on which we are required to report by excepfion
Under the Companies Act 2006 we ore required to report inrespect of the following matters i, in our opinion:

adequate cocaunting records have nat been kep! by the parent campany, of retums adequate
for our cudit have not been received from branches nat visted by Us; or

- tre porent company financial stolements ore not in agreement with the accounting records and
refurns; or
certair disclosures of directors’ remuneraton specified by law cre not made: or

we have notreceived ol the informatior cnd expianations we require for our audil.

We hove nothing 1o report In respec! of these molters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Use of our repor

Inis 1eport is mode solely to the Comzany's membars, as a body. in occordance with Chopter 3 of Port 16 of
tne Companies Act 2004, Qur audit work has been undertaken sz that we might state to the Company’'s
members those matiers we are requirec to state to them in an qudgitor's repor! and ‘or no other purpese. 1o
tne fullest extent permittes by low, we do not accept or assume resoonsicility tc anyone other than the
Company ond the Comparny's members as a Dody, for our audit work, for this repart, of for the opiniors we

have formed,
Moo )
PN g

Helen wilamon ACA {Serior Staiutory Avdilor;
Far cnd on behall of Delo' e LLP

Stotulory Auditor

wondan

United Kingdom

23 September 2020
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAIMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Note 52 week 5% week
period perod ended
ended 28 30 March

March 2020 2019
£000 £000

Revenue 3 476,747 443180
Cost of soles (189,248) [199.674)
Gross proft 287 499 243,504
Agrministrative expenses {284,575) (214.810)
Snare of resulls of associcles gnd joint ventures 13 (702) (371}
Cpersting crotit 4 2,222 28,325
Other goins and losses 4 - [17.249)
fAinonce Income 7 1,344 .34
Finanoe costs & (37.473) (40.628)
Loss betore tax (33,907) [28.238)
Taxotion g 7.982 [3.264)
Loss for the period {25,925) [31.50G4)
Attrbutzche 1o:
Gwrers of the Company (25,925) (31.504)
Comprehensive income
Loss for the pened (25,925) [31,504)
itams that may be reclassified subsequenily 1o profit or
i0)ss:
Exchonge differences on fransloticn of foreign operations 5195 9,622
ftems thatl will not be reclossiied subsequentiy {o profit or
forss:
Remegcsuremenis of posi-employment benefit obligat'ons 241 -
Tatat camprehensive 10ss for the period (20,48%) {21,882}
Allnbiabie to:
Cwners of the Company {20.489) [19,526)
Non-controlling interests - [2.356)
Total comprehensive Ioss for the period (20,489) (21.882)

All activity relotos to continuing operations,

There cre no material differences between the losses for the penods disclesed above and their historica! cost
equivalents. The accompanying notes form part of and are 1o be read in conjunction with these financial

sdotements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Consclidated Company
28 March 30 Morch 28 March 30 March
2020 019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

Investmerts 10.31 4,356 4199 262575 262575
interests in associctes and joint ventures 11.31 1.51% 1,673 - -
Goodwil 12 372,730 368,475 -

Infangible cseets 12 16,328 11,945 -

Property, piont ang eguipmen? 13 430,905 331.463 -

Delered tax ossets 22 11.547 4713 .

Non-current trace ond other receivables ¥4 23,318 28,6489 - -
Non-current assefs 850,724 751087 262,575 242,575
Inventories 14 1,044 1.242 . -
invesimeanrds in shows 15 3,794 551 -

Trade ard other receivables 14 62,554 57.56C - -
Cash and cash eguivaients 17 137.065 28,954 -

Current gssels 204,456 143,289 - -
Total assets 1,047,180 214,374 262576 262,575
Trade and other payables 18 260,814 264,308 10,960 10,900
Borrowings Ik 69,370 - - -
Chbligotions under finonce icases 20 19,474 4,169 -

Provisions 21 25.4B3 12,686 - -
Current habiliilies 375,143 281,163 10,900 10,900
Net current liabillties {148,487) [117.874) {10,900) (10,%00)
Bomowings 19 454,670 451,102 -

Obligations under inonce leoses 20 157,706 85,522 - -
Deferred tox liohilities 22 28,699 26,0356 - -
Non-cumrent liabilities 643,075 543,280 - -
Total liabilities 1,018,218 844,443 10,900 10,900
Net assets 48,942 69.933 251,675 251,675
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Consolidated Company
28 Morch 30 Morch 28 Morch 3D Morch

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
$hare capital 23 262 262 262 262
Share premium accoun” 251,414 251,414 2581.413 251,433
Tronsiclion reserve 27,483 22,288 -
Accumulated deficit (230,197} (204031 -
Total equity atiributable to owners of the 48,9462 69,933 251,475 251,675

Company

The: Company has taken advontage of the exemplion contaned within seclion 408 of the Companies Act

2006 not o present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The result Tor the yveor

deall with in the financial statements of the Company was £nil (20192 £nig,

Tne financior statemends of were approved by the Board ol Directors and authorisec for issue on 23 Septembiie

2020. They were signed on s behat* by:

ShanMae Teo
Registered Number 08749576

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Forthe 52 Forthe 52

week week

period period

ended 28 ended 30

March tMarch

2020 2019

£000 L0006

Net cash generated from operating activities 24 62,235 45,685
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acouired - (54.881)
Acquisition of ossets - (2,430)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {40.923) (19.169)
Purcheses of intargible assets {13 144) (9.352)
Neorn-cash movement on Leasehold improvement disposal - (14,997]
Netinvestmentin shows _ ~ 1,855 {273)
Net cash used in investing activitles S (52,212) {101,082)
New bank loans raised 69.370 100.00C
Dividends paio - (10.900)
Repaoyments of borrowings - (9.074)
Repoyment of obligations uncer finonce legses {18.028) (4,253)
Interest received 27 1,220
Interest paid {(22.917] (7.616)
Financing fees paid - (5,057)
Net cash generated by financing octlivities 28,447 64,318
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,470 8.921
Cash and cosh equivelents at beginning of period 98,954 84,749
Net increase in cash and cash equivaients 38,470 8,921
Foreign exchange gain on cesh 1,639 3,284
Cash and cash equlvalents at end of period 17 139,065 28,956

There is no cash helgin the Compory and as such no Company Stotement of Cash Flows hove boeen
presented,

The cccomponying notes form part of and are 1o be read in conjurction with these fincncial statements,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

General information

internaticnol Entertanment Holdings Limitec [tne “Group”; it © private Company imted by shares.
incorporated in the United Kingzom urder the Campanies Act ang is registered in England and Wales. The

agdress of the registered oftice & 28 St. George Steee?, Lendon, WIS 2FA, United Kingdam.

T™e principal activiies of the Campany ond its subsidiades {the Group) and the nature of the Group's

operations are sel out in in the dralegic repots on pages 110 22

nese finoncia stolements are prosented in pounds stering because thet 5 the curency ©f tho primary

economic environment in which the group operoles.
Adoptlion of new and revised standards

Amendments o IFRSs that ore mandatorily effective for the current period

I ine cunent vear, the Group hos applied amendments 10 IFRS: and o new Interpretation issued by ihe
intermnmiona Accounting Slandaras Boara [IASE) thet are mandatornily eflective for an accounting perad that

beginy on or after 1 January 2019,

In the current year, the Group nos applied IFRS 14 [as issued by the 1A3B in Januacry 2014, that is effectve for
annuacl periods thot begin on or ofter 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 introduces new or ameadec requirements with
respect 1o kecse accounting. it infroduces significant changes 1o lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operating ard fnence leose and requiring the recognitior of a right-of-use asset cnd a

leose liabiity of commencement for all lecses, except tor short-term leases and legses of low value assefs.

The date of initia: applicaticn of IFRS 14 for the Groug & 31 Maich 2019, The Group has applied IFRS 14 using

the simolified transition approach, wilh no resialement of the comparative information.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective:

At the dote of outhorsation of these financia statements the Groop has not applied the foliowing new cnd

revisec IFRSs thet have been issued but cre not yet effective:

Armendments 1o 1AS T Classification of ticbilities s curent o Nor curent
Amendments fo 1AS 3 - Reference to the Conceptudl Framework

Amendments 1c 145 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds belore intendec use
Amendments 1o iAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulliling a contract

IFRS 16 - COVID-1? Related Rent concession:

RS 17 drsurance contracts

Annual improvemeants o IFRS standards 2018 - 2020 (IFRS 1, 1FRS 9, IFRS 14, |AS 4T)

The Directors ore cunenty evaiuating the impact of the adoption of ol other stondards, amendments and

interprefations byt do not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operclion o resulls.
1. Significant accounting policies

Basls of accounting

The linancial stalements bave been prepored in occordonce with Infernational Financial Reporting
Stondaras [IFRSs). The inancial statements have alio been prepored in accordance with IFRSs adeplec by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial slalements comply with Arlicle 4 of the EU 1AS

Regulation.

The Company has token advantage of the exemption contoined within section 408 of the Companices Act
2006 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive income ond related netes. The profit for the year

deait with in the finoncigl staternents of the Company was Lnil {20197 EniY.

Tne linancial slotements hove been prepared on the histarical cost bosis, except for financial inslruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historicel cost is generally boased on ihe fair vatue of the consideralion given in exchange for goods

and services.

Fair value is the price thet would be received 0 sell on asset or paid to fransfer a fability in an orderty
fransaction between morket porticipants at the megsurement dote, regardless of whether that price is
dirccty observabie or estimated using anotrer valuation technigue. in estimating the fair value of on gsset
or g liakiity. the Group takes into cocount the characteristics of the asset or liobility if market porticipants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the assct or hability ot the measurement date,
Fair vaiue for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in those consolidated financial statements is
deotermined cn sueh a basis, except for shore-bascd payment fransactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2. lewsing fransactions that are within the scope of 1AS 17, and mcasurements thot hove some simiiarities fo

fair value but are not fair value, such as net reglischle volue in1AS 2 or volue in use in JAS 34
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Operoting results

Tne operating resuits include fronsactiors up 16 ond including the Saturday on o preceding 31 March ot

each pericd.
Going concern

As at the date of approval of these financiol statements, *he impact of COVID-1% on the Group's rrodng
continues to be ossessed and is subject to rapidly chongirg external foctors. including evolving govermnment
fesponses ta control the sprend of the virus and onigoing chernges in customer sentiment fowards attending

live entertainment events,

Die ip tre measres taker by governments wordwide fo control the COVID 19 auttreak, the Ive
e~lerainment industry came to a standdil rorn the second hatl of March 202G, with all our venues Deing

closed for operations.

2rior 1o mid-march 20290, the Group had positive froding with a srogramming schedule of highly successiul
shews supporting sirong operational petormance coross ol of its teritories. We were in a strong financicl
positior win al covenants under the ferms of cur loans being met, Unfortunctely, the closure of our venues
and the apsence of @ firm e opening date nas resulted in ¢ sharp drop in tumaover, Qur marketing services
brusinesses ore aso expetiencing g cdrop in furnover as many of cur customers are i the live entertainment
and cultural & hetitoge sectors [museurns, gatteries, roos): all of which hove had restictions on their
operatiors duting COVID 19, whilsd there has been ¢ coresponding reduction in variable costs a5 a result

of the ciosure of our venues., the Group continues 1o hove to fund its fixed cost base,

in order ta preserve licuidity ana mitigate the impoct of the fixed cost bose during the crisis period. the

Directors of the Group has taken the following measures:

crealed a Business Continuty Committee, which has been tocused on crisis management and key

decison making:
- ongong engagement with ol our stakehcigers, including our shareholders and lenders;

- imglementatian of bi-weekly cash fiow forecosts to monoge liguidity of o granuior level throughout
the Groun;
- robust scencrio mode ing o drive decision making:

- proactive managemen! of rescheduing shows fo fulure dates to minimize the level ol show

cancelotions and therefore refunds;

- asgnificart c ement of the Group's cos* base refates to woges ond salorics, Waete possib’'e, and
subject to loca regulations, staffing iovels arnd hours worked have Gech reduced. Employees,
inciucing senior managemert ond dircctars have also undericken solary socrifices. Government
suppor both in the UK in the form of the Job Retention Scheme and in the Germany in the ‘orm of

tre Kurzaroeit progrom has been utilised to offset sto®fing costs that continue to be incurcd;

- copital expendiure has been rephosed and proritized on essenthal maimtenance: and
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

- actions have been token to defer or permonently reduce payments of fixed costs and urpaid
vanable costs tom the pre cnisis pericd, inciuding agreements with Governmen! fiscal cuthorties

o centain tax poyments,

Sensitivities are run to refiect different scenarias for when theaires mignt be cbie to re-open durng the 12-
meonth perindg from the date of the agproval o these financial statements. This is done to identity risks to
iquidity and covenant complionce and enable mancgement to formulate cppropriate and timely

mitgction strategies.

Based on thase forecasts and other factors which may impaci the Group's future liquidity position, the
Orectors have concluded that # is appropriate 1o prepare the financial stelemeants on a going concern
basis. However given thal the COVID-19 sifucfion conlinues 1o evolve, there exitls a material uncertainly
related 1o events or conditions thet may cast significant doubxt abeut the Group's ability to cortinue as o

Qaing congcern,
Trne events or conditions are as folionws:

- Tre funding reguirement for the next 172 manths ranges significantly based on the re-opening
sconarios for thegtres, in terms of re-opening dates, potential resteciions On how our voNues con
operate [i.c. social distancing requircrnonds). and the level of demand from audiences. At prasent,
governments in cities where we operate contirue to cdvise that theatrical venues either should

remain closed or only aliowed to be open virtuadlly or with socicl distancing measures;

- Tre Group holds £433 million of committed focilities which ore subject to net leverage ard liquidity
covenants. There is o reduced risk o detault on the net leverage covenant, due o a recent
amandment which allows tor on agjustment 1o net levercge covenant festing whilst theatres ore
closed by governments due 1o COVID-1%. However, the Group is also subject 1o a minimum Equidity

covenant.

The Group has net curtent liabilities of £1468.7 million (2019: £117.9 million) and net assets of £4%.0 millicn (2019:
£6%.9 milion] at the period-end dole. Net cunrent liabililies inclode advanced ticke! sales of £142.4 million
(2019: £139.0 million), which represents ficket sales for shows that have yel to maiture with a porlion of this
armount due to flow to the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and non-relundable granis. the Group
hos lickilifies due within one year of £187.0 milion (2017: £124.1 milion] whizh are excegded by current

assets of £204.5 million, (2019: £1463.3 millian).

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow occounts, in its bank acceunts of £49.8 million os
at the date of appreval of these financial statements, The Group hes receiveg an equity commitment of
£50 million from its shareholders. of which £30 milion has been drown, with £20 millicn of undrown avai abifity,
i we are alowed to open in December 2020 without any social distancing and ticket sales rel:ound in
November, the Group will have sufficient cosh to meet the minimum liquidity covenont. If our re-opening is
deloyed beyord December with o coresponding delay in ficket sales. addficnal funding wauld be
reguired.

In order to mitigate 1he risks tighlighted above, the Directors are engaging with the Group's shoreholders

and lencders to explore funding soluticns. As of September 11, the shareholders of the Group have signed &
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

definitive ogreement to secure funding which is intended for the Group, As at the dole of Inis report, there
i5 no com-nitmend of funds to the Group but negolictions with tne shoreholders are advanced ond he
Directors have o reasanable expectation inat these wil conclude shorty, I the re-opening date for theatres
without social distancing cue to COVID 19 is deleyed beyond December 2020 and in the unlikety scencrio
where additional funding does not cocur, there is o risk that the Group may breach the minimum igu'dity
covenant dunng the 12 month gaing concern mssessment period. If there s o treach of such covenant and
such breach is no' cured by The sharshaidans pusuant 1o the cure right under the ingncing documents,

then the lenders could request that the (oans be repaid.

Notwithstanding this material uncericinty, the Board's confidence in the Group's farecests, its ablity fo
manage ifs iquidity requirements. the status of the curent funging discussions, confidence in the continued
support of our shaorehcolders, and the long term patentiai of the business forms the bas’s of our creparction

of the finanz:al stetements on o going concern ocsis.

Basis of consolidation

The consoidarcd financal statements incorporate the financ’al statements of the Compony anc enlitics
coniraliod by the Company s subsidianies), Contra’ s ochicved when the Company has the power over
e investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variabie retums from its invotvement with the investec ond Fas tho

ability 1o use its power o effect its relurns,

The results of subsidiaries acquirec or disposed of curing the period are included in the Comsolidates
Statement of Comprehensive ircome fram the dale the Comipany gains control until the dale when the

Company ceases 1o control the subsidiary.

Ali infrogroup assels and liobilitics, equity, income. expenses and cosh flows relcfing to franscctions

between the members of the Group are elimingted on consolidation,

Non-controling interests in swosidiones ore ideniilied separately frem the Group's equity therein. Those
interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership iMlerests are initially measured ¢l the
non-confroling inferests” proportionate share of the fair value of the ocoquiree's idenfifioble net assets.
Subsequent to acquisition. the camying omount of non-controlling interests & tre amaunt of thote interesis

atinifial recognition plus the nen-controlling irteresis” share of subsequent changes in equity.
Business Combinations

Acquistions of subsidiaries are accounted for vsing the acquisition method. The consideration transterred in
a busingss cambinotion is Mmeasured a1 ta'r value. Acguisiion-related costs are recognised in protit or lass as

incurred,

Goaodwil is measured as the excess of the sum of the cansideration fransterec, the omount of ary non-
corholing interest in the acguiree. ond the foir vawe of the acauirer's previously held equity inlerest in the
acquire [if cry) over the net of the aocquistion-date amounts of the identifichle assets acquires ond the

lighilities assumes.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THLC 52 WLEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Contingen! consideration is measured af its acquisition date fair value and included os port of the
corsideralion transfered in a bausiness combination, Changes in foir value of the contingent consideraton
tnat qualfy o3 meaeasuremend pericoc adustments are adjusted rehospeclively, with  corresponding
adiustrments cganst gaoowill. Measuremneant perioa adiustments are adjustments that orise from additionaol
infarmation abioned during a maxirnum peiod which cannn! exceed one yeor Fom the acauisition date
about focts ong circumstonces that exised ot the acquisition date. Where changes eccur 1o confingent
consideration tnat is classified as an asset or lighility. that do net guaalify as measurement period adjustments,
tne contingent consicerahon 5 remeasured af subseauent reporting dotes with the conresponding gain or
los being recoanised in profit on loss, To the extent that the terms of contingent consideration arangements
inciude service conditions, consideration iy eated oy o cost of employment and is recoonised over the

period to which the service condifians relate,

The Group regorts provisiondal cmounts untit *he macsurement perioc is compieted.
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are valued ot cost iess provision for impairment.
Associates and joint arrangements

An gssociote is on entity over which the Groug hos significant infiuence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a jnint venture. Significant influence s *he power to partcipate in the financial and operating

policy decisions of the investee but is not control or ioint confral over those policies.

A joint anangerment is an anangement of which two o more oorlies have join! control, Joint control i the
cortiacivally agreed shanng of confral of an anrangement, which exists only when decisions abaut ke
relevant activites (i.e. aclivihes that signikcantly affect the returms of the arangemeant] recuire the unanimous
corsent of the parties sharing conhel, Joind arengements are classified into lwa types - joint operatiens and

joird veniures,

A joint operation is a joint orongement wnereby the parfies *hat have joint control of the arangement {i.e.
joint operctors) have rights to the ossets, ond cbligotions for the lichillies, relating to the arrongement. Ajoint
venture is @ joint omongement whereby the porfies thot have jont control of the arrongement fi.e. joint
venturers) have rights 1o the net cssets of the amangement. The type of joirt arrangement is assessed by
considerng its rights and obligations, by considening the structure and legal form of the orongoment, the
corfroctua! torms ogreed o by the porties to the armongement ond, when relevent, other facts and

circumstances.

The assets and liabilities {ond relcted revenues and expenses) of joint cperations are recognised in proportion

to the interest in the arrangement.

The rosults and ossets ongd licblities of assacictes ond joint ventures are incorporated in these financicl

statements using the cquity method of occounting, Under the cquity method, oninvestment in on associate

is inttioliy recognised in the consclidated Stotement of Financial Position at cost and edjusted thereaofter to

recognise the Group's shore of the weofit or loss ancé other comprehensive income of the associate. When
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the Group's share of loses of an osocicte exceeds the Group's nterest in that associcte (which includes
any long terrm interests that, insabstance, form ool of tne Group's net investment in the osseciate). the
Groug ciscontinues recogrising its share of further losses. Addiional loesses cre recognised only 10 the exient

irat the Grous has incured legal or constructve obligations of mode paymaents on beholf of the assaciate,
Goodwill

Goodwil i not omorised bul is reviewes for imopairmeni at least annualy.

For the purpose of impcirment testing, goodwili 15 allocated 1o each of the Group's cash-generating units
expected to pencft from the synergies of the comingtion. Cosh-generating units to which goodwit hos
been allocated ore tested for impairment annually, or more freguertly when there is an ingication thot the
uret may be impaoired, I the recoverchile amount of the cash-generating unit is 1ess than its camying amount,
tne impoirmens toss is alliocated first ta reduce the catying amount of any gooowill cllocated to the unit ond
tren to the otrer assets of the unit pro-rata on the boss of the carrying amount ot ecch asset ir the unit. An

imaairment 1oss recognised for goodwil is not reversed in o subscguent perod.

Impoirment of non-current assets

Al each balance sheel dole, the Group reviews the carrying amceunts of its tangitle and intanagible assels
to determing whether tnere is ary indication that those awsets have sulfered animpairment loss, Goodwill is

roviewed Tor impairment g’ tleast arnually,

for the purpose of impaimant testing, goodwill is allocates, at acguisition. 1o ~he cosh genercting units

{CGUs} or groug of units that are expected to benefit from that business comipnation.

An impoitmen) loss is recognised If ine camying omount of the asset under considerglion exceeds iy
recoverable amount, Recoverable omount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing volue in use, the estimated future cash flows ore discounted 1o their present volue using o
discount rete thot reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to

the assed,

I the recoverable amaunt of the cash-generating unit it less *han the carrving amount of the unil, the
impairment Joss is ollocated first te reduce the carrying omaunt of ony goodwill and then to the other ossets
ot the wnit pra-ratc on the basis of the camying amount ¢f gccn osset in the unil. An impairment loss

recognised for goodwill is not reversed in o subseguent period,
Investments in shows and co-production arrangements

Investments in shows are stated at cost less amounts recouped to date, and provisions for ony amounts

which the direciors do net believe are recoverable.

fraduclion arangements are reviewed on ¢ produclion by produchon basis and reated based on Ine

principles oul ined above as either a subsidiary, an associale or joint venture or joint arnengement.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, piant and eqoipment are stated at cost less depreciotion ond accumuiated imporments,
Depreciation is provided at rates caloulates to write off the codl of fixed assets, less their estimated residual

value, on a stra'ghi-line basis over their expecied useful lives cs fallows:

Freehold builoings 40 to 50 years
Leasenold property Shorter ¢t lenseheld term and usetul lite of 40 to 30 years
Fixtures and fitings 4 - 10 years, or over the period 1o the end of the lease of the thactre

it fhis is shorter

Mo gepreciofion is cpplied 1o the cost of assels in the course of consiruction. freeholc and is not

depreciated.
intangible ossets

intangible cssets ol have finite lives and are caried of cost less accumulated amortisation ond
accumukated impairment losses. Amortisotion is recognised cn a sirorght-ing oosis over their estimated

usefu! lives ond is recognised in the administrative expenses line ifem.

The: amortisation period for softwore is 4 years. The estimated life of oiner intongible asse's is considerea on

an assel-by asset bass and is up 1o 10 years,
Inventory

inventory is vaiued ot the lower of cost and net realiscbie vaiue affer making due slliowance for obsolete

and slow - moving items,
financial insruments

finencial assets end fnancial lichililies are recognised in the Consolidated Slatement of Fnancial Position
when the Group becomes a party 1o the conhractual provisians of the instrument and are initially measured
et forr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the aoguisition or issue of fingncial assets and
financial Babilities, other than financial assets ond financial liabiilies ol {ar volue through profif or loss
{"FVTPL"), are added to, or deductied from. the fair value of the inancial assets o financial liabiities on intial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the aoguisilion of financial assets o financial lobifiies

at fair value through praofit or loss ore recognised immeaediolely in prefit ar loss,
Cash and cosh equivalents

Cash and cosh equivalents comprise coash balances, call deposits and escrow-type accounts. Bank
averdraflls that are repayab.e on demand and form an integral part of the Grouwp’s cash management are

inciuded o5 a compoenent of cash and cash equivalenls for the purpose of the Statement of cash llows.
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Trade receivablets and gocrued income

Trade receivobles and aocrued ncome are ciossified as loans amd recevables and ore measured of
amortised cos! using the effective interest methad, less any impairment. Since hrade receivables and
accruad income are typicaly due within one year, and the eflect of any effeciive intarestisimmaterial, this

aquates 1o inifial carying vaiue less any impairment.
Borowings

Loans and Borrowings are initialiy measured al far value, nat of ransaction cosds. They are subsegquently
measured ab amartised cast using the ellective inlerest metnad, wilh inferest expense recognised on an
elfective vield basis. The eflective interest rate s o metnod of calculating the amorlised cost of a financial
lighility and of ailncalec inlerest expense over the relevant perod, The efleclive interey! rale is the rate thot
exacily discounts estimated [oture cash payments ihrough the expected e of the linancial fabidy, ar,

where appropriate, o thorter pericd to the nel carrying amount on initial recognition.
Trade payablcs and Qoorsas

Trade payables and accruas are closified s loans ond receivabies ard are meqiured af amoertised cost
using the effective interest method. Since trace payables ana azcruals are typically due within one year,

and the effective ol any effective inigrest is immaterial, tnis equates to initial canmying value.
fFinancial guaroniees

Fnonciol guaraniee conliacts ore accounted for as insurance contracts.

Deterred income

Amounts received by the Group for services performec in future are clossiied as deferred income cnd

recognised in the Consolidaled Statemert of Comprehensive Income when the senvice is performed.
Refirement benefits

Payments to defined conbibulion refirement benefit schemes ore recognised at an expense when
emplovees have rendered service entiting them 1o the condributions. Differences between contribuhons
payatle in the period and conlribulions actually peid are shown as either accruals or prepoyments ir

the balance sheel.

Where there are defines benefit schemaes. if ¢ retirement benefit obligation arises. it 15 recognised at fair
vatue, nel of any scheme gssets. in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position. finonce charges or
tne unwinding of discouried scheme coligations are recognised in the Consclidated Statement of
Comprehersive Income, with ony actuarial differences arising being recogrised in Other Comprehensive

Incoms:,
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Revenue

Revenue is recognised ot the fair value of the cons'derarion receives or receivobhie and represents
amoJnts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT ond other soles-reloted taxes. Revenue for the Group comgprises severct elements. including:
venue rentol and production relafed services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided [such as venue renial cno statfing, trochure

praduction and accounting services) are recognised net of saies 1axes as thase services ore provided.

Revenue from production relaled services is recognisec al the dale of performance of the srow, urti

which time it is held on the Statement of Financial Position as Defered Income,
Promotiono! services

Trhe Group acts Qs promoter for self producen shows ond shows procuced by third porties. Revenue from
tnese services is recognised at fair volue of consideration received, nel of sales taxes, at the dgte of

nerormance ol the thow.
Marketing services

rRevenue from the provision of rerkeling services i recognised ol the fair value of the consideration
received o receivable. The foir value of consideration (akes inlo cocount frade discounts, seYlement
discounts ond volurne iebates, Markeling services revenue is recognised net of sales 1axes over the petod
that services ore providged, o as recoverobie cosh are incuned, in accordance with the terms of he
confractual agreement, When recarded markeling services revenue exceeds the armounts invoiced to

chent, the excess i classified as accnred ncome.
Ticket sales

Revenue from lickel sales represents the revenue samed from commissions, credit card charges and

similar charges. This revenue is recognised al the dote the ticket is solad,

Revenrve from ticket sales where the Group is octing as selling agent (whether for #s own theatres or for
other UK venues) includes booking fees, commissions, ond simitar cdditionalincome chorged at the point
of sale. These omounts are recognised net of gny sales toxes ot the fransaction dote. Such revenue is
recognised os an agent rather thon principal fransaction, ond so excludes the foce vaiue of the tickets

sold,
Reton saies

Revenue from concession sales to customers at the Groun's venues is recognised net of sales taxes ot the

point of sale.,
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Ciher revenue

Tne Group provides varcus other services on an ad hoc bas's, olf of which arereloted ta s principa: cctivity.
Related revenue is recagnised at tair volue over the periad that such services are performed and

perdormonce obligations are met.
it apercdions

in relation to ¢o-production arangements, where ¢ contralling or joint cperatior interest is held. reverue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no confroliirg interest is hetd tumover
represents net income from procductions. Where equity occounting is appled, the share of profit ar loss is

disclosed in the “share ot results of ossociates ard jornt ventures” line.
Government granis

lnccme from government grants is recognised as deferred income ond relecsed to the Consolidated
Stetement ot Comprehensive Income as the artached conditions are saotished. Where the grant relates to
procarement of ar asset the omount received i relecsed to the Consoldoled Statement of

Comprerensive Income over the usetul lile of the asset ogainst assaciates gepreciction.

A materic grool reloted fo assebs s presented in the stolement of inancia position as o deduchion from

tne carrying value ol thesentec ossel, wilh a comequent ieductionin the annual charges lor depreciation.

Finance Leases

Finance leases are those where subsiantiolly ali of the reks ond rewerds of ownership ate gssumed by the

Group.

Assets relg under finance leases ore recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, af the
present valye of the minimum leose payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The

corresponding iotdity ta the lessoris included in the Consolidoted cs a finance iease obligatior.

Ther finance element of the rental payment is charged 1o the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
income qs interest povable in order lo reflect the imputed cost of finance on the ret obligation outstanding

ireach period.
IFRS 14 Leases

The: Group recogrises a ngnt-ol-use asset and a lease iobility gt ihe lecse commencerment date. The dght-
of-use asset s inifially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease lability adjusted for

any lease payments made of or belore the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incured.

The right-of-use asset is subseguently deprecicted using the sircight-lne metnod from the commencement
dote. The gstimcted useful lives of the right-of use asse™s are aetermined on the same baosis as those of

properly, plont ond cguipment.
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Thie leecases liatlty iy initially measared ot the present value of the lease payments that are not paid af the
commencemen! date, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The habiity s subsequently

adiusted for any re measurement of the lease ey resalting from reassesments or lease modficafions.

The Group presents Aght-of-use assetfs in 'property. clant ond equipmen?” and lease kakiities in ‘finance

leases’ n the statement of tinancial position.
Short-termn leases and leases of jow-value assets

The Greup has elecied not to recognise right-cf-use assets and lease iohilifies for short-term leases of 12
months or less and lesses of low-valle ossets. The Group recognises the iease payments associated with

fnese leases as an expense on a straight-lineg basis over the lease term.
Foreign currencies

For the purpose of the consaliaated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Groun
Company are expressad in pounds sterding. which is the functional curency of the Corpany, and 1he

presentational currency {ar the consolidated financial statemenrts.

Monetary ossets ana labilties denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into sterling atf rates
of exchange wiing af the bakince sheet date, Transactions in fore'gn cumencies are ronslated inte sterling
ot the rale rulirg on the date of the transaction. Such exchange gaing and losses are recogrises in profif or
ioss. Foreign exchange gains of losses on loons that are effectively investment instruments, such as where @
parent Company makes a loon with no repayment ferms fo o subsidicry hotding Company os port of

acquisition consideration, are recognised in other comprehensive incoms,

Resuits of oversecs sutsidianes are transloted ot average monthly rates. Assets and Fabiities of overseas
subsidiaries are transicted at the rate ruling at the bolonce sheet dote. Such exchange ditterences orising

are recognised in the franslation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.
Qperatling profit

Opercting profit s stated after the shore of results ©f associctes but before finance income and costs, other

gains and losses and foxes.

finance income

Finance income is recagnised in protit orioss in the period in which they are earmea.

Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incured.

Other gains and losses

Other gains ard losses are recagnised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurmed.
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Pre-Production related costs

Expenses incured prior 10 o production going live and are directly ottrbutab e to the production of the
show are categorised in1o either property plant ond equipment and depreciated over the assumed useful
iite ot the show, or 'Other non-langitie assets’. which cre released to the Profit and Los: aver the show's
useiy! ite bases upon the ratic of the cumrrent pericd's revenues 1o the estmaoies totol reverues {Total
Proguction Revenue} for each production. Where estimates of total Production Revenus decrecses,
amartizotion of pre-production costs may be acccelerated. Conversely, if estimates of Totol Production

Revenues were 'c increase then amartization of costs may be slowed.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of tho tox currently payoble ard deferred tax,

Current and defered tox are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relale 1o iderrs that are
recognised n other comprehensive income or directiy in equity, in which case the current and deferred tox
are olso recognised ir other comprenhensive income or direcTly in eouity respectively. Where current 1ax or
deterrec tox arises ‘rom the intial accounting tor o business combinatior., the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination,

Current tax is boserd on toxable profit for the period calouloted usicg lax rates that have been enaclea or

substantively enccles by the eng of the reporting period,

Deferred fax is recognised on temparary ditferences betweean the camyng omounts of assets ond liabilities
in the consolidated “inanciol statements and the cormaspording tax boses used in the computstion of
taxable profit, Deterred tox Labiiities are generaily recognised for ol taxable femporary differences.
Defered tox astels are generally recognised for oll deduciible temporary differences to the extent that it s
probable thot toxable profits will be ovoilcble ogoinst which those deductible temporory cifferences can

be viilised.

Such deterred tax ossets ond liatilities ore not recognised if the temporcry difference arises rom the initia!
recognificn of goodwil. from the initicl recognition (other than in a business combrnation) of assets ond
Eabilities in o rronsactor 1ngt offects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or investments in
subsidiories aad gssociates, and interests in joint ventures, where the Group is abe to controf the reversal of
e temporary difference and itis probable that the remporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
fulures, The amount of deferred tox provided is based on the expected manner of reglisolion or setliement
of the camrying amount of assels and lkabilities, usng lax rafes enacted or substantively enacted ol the
financial penod end dale. A deferea lax assel is recegnised only fo the extent that il is probabile that future

taxable profits will be available aaainst which the asset can be utilised,
Provisions

Provisions a'e recognisect when the Group hos a present obbaation {lega! or construclive) as aresult of a
post event. il i probable that the Group wilk be required tc settle thal chiligation ang a reliable estmole

can be made of the amount of the abligation.

53




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the apolication of the Group's accourting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are
requirec o make judgements, estimates ond assumptions cbeout the carrving amounts ot assets ond

liakilities tnat are not readily cpparent from other sources,

Tne estimaotes and ossociaed assumations are basso on hstorico! experence and other factors that e

considerad 1o be relevant. Actual resulls may differ from these esfimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions cre reviewed on cn ongceing bosis. Revisions ta cccaounting
estimates are recognises in the perdod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects cnty thot period,

or in the period of the revision ond future pericds it the revisicn affects both curent ond future pericos.
Judgements
Golng concern basis

in order o assess whether i s appropriate for the Group to be reported as ¢ going concermn, the Directors
apply judgemeant. having undertaken appropriate enguiries ana havirg consicered the pusingst activilies
and the Group's princinal risks and uncerainties 1o therefore conclude that the accounts be prepared on

a goirgg concern basis, Refer to page 24 for owr detailed assessrneant.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Carrying value of non-current assets

Impairment

Tne Group cssesses the cormying va ues of property, piant end equipment, and intongible ossets cnnudally,
Recoverakility is dependent upon assumptions and estimates reqgording morket conditions, future cosh
flows and discount rates, known os ot the 28 parch 2020, A materiol change in assumphions may significantly

impact the potential impaiment of these assets.

A reasorably possible change in the dark period to 6 months creates an irmpairment ol £5.7 millior in
marketing services cash generating unit and reduces headraom in other CGUs 1o 24%. 118%. 23%.ana 164%.

for UK, US. 8B, Mehr of Ihe canying value respectively. Further delail can be found innote 12,
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Provisions

Refunds ang lickeling provision - provision for poterdia oot related 1o returds and ticketing as o result of
all venues being closed was basea on the timited amount of dota and the short window between fhe
venues going dork and the year end, A reasonable chonge in assumptions may sigrificantly impact the

leve!l of provisions bosked. which was bases onirformation availnble a: af 28 tMarch 2020,
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3. Revenue

Trne Group's revenue from external customers by classification is detailed be ow:

52 week period 52 week pericd
ended 28 March ended 30 march

2020 2019

£'000 £ 000
venue Rental ond Production Reiated Services 230,048 224 497
Promotional & Markehng Servicos 115,478 114,184
Jicket and Retai Scles 119,547 95124
Other 11,654 9.375
Total revenue 476747 443,180

The Group's revenue from externa? customers by geographicol locotion is detdled below;

52 week period 52 week perod
ended 28 Morch ended 30 March

2020 209

£'000 £000
United Kingdom 213,847 207,985
Rest of Furope 123,473 124,324
Morth America 129,441 100,252
Asic 9.984 10,617
Total revenue 474,747 443 180
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4. Net Loss for the Feriod

Net loss for the perod has been amved at after caargng/ (crediting):

Depreciation of progerty. clant ang eauvipment i3
Depreciation charge {or right-of-use assets - Buidings 13
Amcrtisation of irlangible fixed assets 12
impairnent of property. plent andg cauipmaont 13
impairment of intangicle assets 12

Impoirment of lorg term debtor
Operctling lease charges

Staff cosls

Fingnco income

Fincnce costs

nterest expense or IFRS 14 1eose liabilities
Other gains ond losses

[ eI NS

52 week 52 week perod

period ended
28 March
2020

£'000
21,439
B.759
1,974
7,154
7.776
8,967
2151
137.810
(1.344)
30,926
5,547

ended 30
Moerch 2019

£°000
16,852

2877

10,372
121.184
{1.314}
40,628

17,247

in the pricr veor, other gains ond loses relote primaorily to the unwinc of the US tax credit sfructure, wnich
wos entered into in order to retuls the Saenger Thearre, following its destructior during the passoge of
Hurricane Kotring in New Oreans. The unwind resulted in a net non-cath one-off loss of £17.2 milion. which
comprised of ¢ one-off loss of £20.6 milion as the value of the propery (£31.0 milion} was higher then the
notes paoyable balonce of (£10.4 milion), which was woived by the City of New Oreans upeon tronsfer of the

praperty. This ioss was offsct by a nct gain of £3.4 million from the initial transfer-in of the osscts foliewing the

imiticl trigger of the unwing by the involved third parhes.
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5.  Auditor's remuneration

The cnalysis of the cuditol's remuneration is as follows:

52 week perod 52 week pericd
ended 28 ended 30
March 2020 Mot 2019

£'000 £000
Fees paoyable to the Company's auditor and their associotes for the cudit of

The consoiidated ond parent tinancial statements 418 308
The subsidkary finoncial stotements 45 59
Total audit fees 483 347
Taxation complionce services 71 &3
Taxgtion advisory services 10 25
Total non-avdit fees 81 &8
Total 484 455
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4. Staff cosls

Tne overade monthly number of emplovees (ncluding execulive directors) was!
¥ 9

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 March ended 30 Maich

2020 2019
Executive directors 5 5
venue stcl 4,349 4.041
Other 1,526 1,368
Total nionihly average number of employees ' A 5880 5,214
Their agoregate remunerction comprised: £'000 £000
Woges ahd solaries 125,644 110.438
Social security costs 9,703 ?.039
Ciher pensicn costs 2 441 1.7C7
Total agygregate remuneration 137,810 121,184
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6. Stalt costs {continuved)

Rermuneration of directors and key management persoanel
he remunercticn of the directors ang key management persannel of the Group is set cu* below:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 2B March ended 37 Morch

2020 2019
£000 £000
femuneration of directors:
Salanes, fees, bonuses, and benedits in kind 1.501 1.57G
Money purchase pension condributions 20 20
Total remuneration of directors 1.521 1.590
Remuneralicn of directors and key management personne!;
Remunerction 3.687 3.664
Sacial securily contriutions 513 540
Pension 60 55
Totol remuneration of key management personnel 4,260 4,259

Key managemen! personnel are those who have significant influence over the operational running of the
business. Duing the period, refirement benefits ware accruing te 2 [2015: 2] directors inrespect of

delined contribidion schemes.

The highest poid director received remuncration of £935, 000 {2019: £1.072.500). The value of the
Company's contricutions paid to a defined contribution scheme in respect of thet individual cmounted
tao £10.000 (20019 £10.000).

During the perod. directors and key monagement personnel received tatcl compensation for loss of office

totaling £nil [201%: £nil), on which social security of £ni (2019 £nil} was poid by the Group.
Pensions

The Group operctes defined contribution pension schemes, The assets of the scheme ore held separately
from those of the Group in an independenily cdministered fund, The pension cosl charge represents
contributions payshile by the Group to the fund and amounted to £2.441.000 (2019 £1.707.000).
Contributions totaling £340.000 {2019: £86.000) were payable to the fung at the bolance sheet date,

Empioyee benefit frust

The Group has na direct employee share scheme of share-based paymen! anangemeant. However, certain
employees of the Group have ccquited an interest in the eguily of the holding Company via an emgployee

benefit trust in both the curen! and prior periods.
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7. Finance income

| payobles

52 week 52 week period

period ended ended 30

28 March 2020 March 2019

£'000 £U00

Irnterast income 1,324 1.294
Unwinging of discaunt on long term receivohies ond 20 20

Fingnce income 1,344 1,314

8. Finonce costs

52 week 52 week period

period ended cndcd 30 Morch

28 March 2019

2020

£'000 £000
inierest onioans from parent underigkings 1,841 1799
in‘erest or ban« overdralts andg toans 20.348 13.747
In‘eres' o chiigofions under finance leoses 11,504 4919
Aamcrtisction of inancing fees 3,780 1.5G2
Fair valee iosses an financial instruments - 18.4641
Finance costs 37,473 40,628

infercormpany re’ated loans incuned interest chorges of Lbor plus 5.0% margin.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

¢.  Toxation

Analyss of tax (credil} / charge in the perod

52 week 57 week perod

period ended ended 30
28 March Morch 2009
2020
Curmrent tax £000 £'00D
Tax charge anfoss for tng perioc 431 4,085
Pricr year tax adiusiment {4,570}
Foreign tax in the pericd Q&7 -
Total cumrent tax {3.172) 4.0¢65
Deterred tax 22
Defered 1ax credii current yew (6.333) (583}
Changce in tax rate 2,760 -
Adjustments in respect of prior pericds 763 (218}
Total deferred tax (4.810) [79%1
Tax on loss (7.982) 3.2¢¢

Corporabon tox s colcuoted of 19% (2009: 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the perod, Taxation for

other jursdictions is colcuiated of the rares prevoiling in the respective jurisdictions.

There is Nil income tax impact [2019: Ni) for items within ather comprehensive income.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

9. Taxation {continued)

The chorge for ine period con be reconciled 1o the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

a8 follows:
52 week period 57 week period
ended 28 endec 30 Morch
March 2020 Zne
£'000 000
Logs befoe (o2 {33,907} 128,238]
Lass multiclied by standard rete of corporation 'ox in the UK of
19% (2019 19%) (6.442) [5,365)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductitle for tax puposes 3.564 10.051
Agiustments to tax charge in respect of pricr poriods (3.807) (216)
tifect ot ditfferant rate tor deterred tax 2740 {B4)
Effect of overseas tax rctes (3 402) 259
Theotre 1ax credit 1735} (1.345)
Qther reconcling differences _ 280 1¢
Tax (credit) /charge for the period (7.982) 37266

Tne closing UK deferred tox faoility as of 28 Morch 2020 nas been calculoted ot 19%, as the rote reduction
recognised iast year has been reverses, reflecting the tax rate of which the deferred tax liability is expected

1o become poyable.

Delered tax abilities have nol beenr recoanised in respect of retained earmings of overseas subsidiaries.
Retained eamings of oversens subsidicries are expected to be reinvesied indefinilely or remilted 1o The UK
free fiom further taxation. Defened fox assers on camed forward unutiised Iosses in Ausiratio of £2.097.000

(2019 £2.270.000] have not been recognised.

There are cored forward unutiisea fox losses in the UK of £351.0035 {2019: £351.000) resulting in g deferred

tax asset which has nat peen recognised. Nore of these josses have an expiry date.

The tax debtor in the UK is £5,037,000 and the creditor for Germany is £1.849,000. There is o defermed tox
lizbility of £28,699 000 ond o deferred tax assat of £11,548,000.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

10. Investments

The directly ond indrectiy held subsidicries ore listed in note 31,

Group

As af 52 week
period ended
28 March 2020

As cf 52 week
period endad
30 nmorch 2019

£'000 £'030
Cast and Met book value
Listed investments 1 i
Unlisted Investments 4,355 4128
Investments 4,254 4,129
Compoany As al 52 week  As cf 52 wieek

period ended perod ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019
£'000 £'000

Cost and Net book value
Subsidiary investments 262,575 262,575
Investments 242,575 262,575

The Group's unlisted investments relate 1o ifs investmend in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, o

company incorporated in the Uniled States of America of which Ihe Groups owns 1.08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

11. Interests In associates ond joint ventures - Group

As al 52 week As of 52 week
period ended perod ended
28 March 2020 30 rMarch 2019

£'000 £000
InTeres™s i joint ventures 815 394
Interests in associates 1,004 V279
Interests in associafes and joint ventures 1.51% 1.673

Joint Veniures

The Group hos interests in several individoally immalerial Joinl Ventures which tcke The formo of both
produclions and businesses. Each investment is shuclured as o separate vehicle and the Groun has ¢
residuclirlerest in the net assels of the investmeni, Accordingly, the Group has classilied ifs interesls as joint
venlures, For some of the productions, the Group it enbilied 1o lesy than 0% of Ine procuction eammings

nowever the produclion agreemenrt requires unanimous consent in decision making resulting inoint cantrol.

The following tabic analyses, in aggregots, tho corrying amaourt ond sharc of total comprehensive income

ot these Joiny Veniures,

Tre tollowing Companes hove a yedar-end date different to he Group's accounting Fnarcial vear end of
28 March 2020:

HP Wesl End: 31 Octoner 2020

JB UK Touwr 1I: 31 December 2020

Tioin Times SF [P: 31 December 2020

Trein Times Breadway LP: 31 December 2020

This is a@s a result of the enfities not falling under IEHL and therefore structure is put in place in line with

sharehcloer's expecictions.

For the purposes of applying the equily methad of cccounting. the: financial statements of HP West End (for
the vear ended 31 October 2019), and 1B UK Tour I, Train Trae SF LP, Train Times Broadway LP lor the yeor

erded 31 December 20'9) hove been used,

The joict ventures are not restricted in their abiticy to transter funds to the Group in the form of cash dvidends,

or to repay loans of advances by the entity,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

11. Interests in ossociotes ond joint ventures - Group {continued)

As at 52 week
period ended
28 March 2020

As o 52 week
pernod ended
30 parch 2019

£'000 L1000
Canying amount of interests in Joint Ventures 515 394
Share of total comprehensive income (702) 1371}

Agsacictes

Corrying amount of interests in Associates

As al 52 week
period ended
28 Mmarch 2020

£000
1,004

As ot 52 week
period ended
30 March 2019

2000
1,279

Share of total comprehensive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. Intangible assels ~ Grouvp

Total
Assets under Other - Intangible
Software construction Intangibles Assets  Goodwill Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £00Q
Cost
A 3) March 2018 7931 - ¢.560 14,491 294,903 309,294
Anditiong 9.352 9.352 9,352
rRecognised on ocquisifion of ©
subsaany
- tAehr! Entertcinment GmibH 538 - - 538 38,4652 39,230
- ACESLLLC - - - - 36.547 34,947
- Theatre Moncgemeant Ho dings
Limiec - - - - 5,255 5,255
Exchange ditterences - [g02| - (62) (244) 157 (807}
At 30 March 2019 16,919 - 4 498 23417 375,954 399,37
Aqditions 2,929 3.292 7.447 13,668 - 13,668
Transfers 3,222 (3,222} - -
Exchange dilferences 2 - 462 444 4,565 5029
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14,407 37.550 380,519 418047
Accumvulated amortisclion and Impairment
A* 31 March 2018 6119 - 2.676 8,795 7.429 16,424
Charge for the 53 weck period 2,167 - 725 2,872 - 2,872
Exchange diflerences 1) - (194) {195) (150} (345)
Al 30 March 2019 8,265 - 3,207 11,472 7.47¢% 18,951
Charge for the 52 week period 1,541 - 433 1.974 - 1,974
Impadirment - - 7776 1.776 - 1,774
Exchange differences - - - - 31D 310
Af 2B March 2020 . 9.806 - 11,416 21,222 7.78% 29011
Carrying amount
At 28 March 2020 13,267 70 2,991 14,328 372,730 389,058
At 30 March 2019 8.654 . 3,291 11.945 348,475 380,420

The cmount of expenditures recagnised i ihe carry'ng amaount of assets under construction is £3.3 milion
(2019: £N}.

Oiher intengible gssets relate 1o show rights costs ond pre-prodaction reloted costs,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. Intangible assets - Group (continued)

Goodwill ccquired in o business combination is alocated. ol acquisition, 1o the cash generotng units
(CGUs) or group of units that are expacted to benelit from that busingss combination. The camying amcunt

of goodwili had been adllocoted ta the follawing Groups of CGUs:

At 28 March

2020

£'000

United Kinggom 254 444
TRY.N £2.033
Mainiond Europe 42,673
AR A 13,578
Totol goodwill 372,730

The Group tests goodwill, intangitle asscts and ali Property. plant ond equipment onnucly for impairmaen?,
or mere frequently ¥ there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The recoveralic amounts of the

CGUs and the group of units are determined from value in use caicuiations,

The impairment reviews for Unitecd Kingdom. USA. Mgoinland Europe ond AKA do not indicate ony

imgpairment agoinst goodwill, however it did indicate impairment charges as follows:
Other Intangibles fainiand Eurape) - £7.8 million
Prope:rty Plont & Equipment feler la nole 13);
=~ Mainland Europe - £6.1 millicn

United Kingdom- £1.8m



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

12. ntengible ossets - Group {continued)

The key assumphions and resulting otiributes of the impairment review cre o8 1ollows:

Mainland  Mainiand

United Europe: Europe:  Marketing
£Ms Kingdem UsSA BB Mehr! Services
Guudwill /54 4 YA 10 3%.6 13.6
PPE ! Other Intangibles 27435 1223 4.6 47.8 132
Total assets 528.7 184.3 7.4 87.4 248
wACC ossumption 10.0% 10.5% 10.8% 10.0% 9.4%
GDP Growih 00% 21% 0.0% C.0% a.0%
Inflatior 20% AR 1.7% 1.7% 2.0%

Tne volues for the key assumplions were grmived at by taking into consideration historcal informaticn and
comparison 1o external sources where appropriate. sucr gs market rates for discount factors, GDP growth
rates are used as the termingi value growth rate in calculating the net present vaiues of the respective

CGUs. whilc the infigtion rates are applicd os the bose growth factor for years 2 1o 4,

Budgeied cash flows ~ the caiculation ot vaiue in use has peen bosed on the cash flows forecast in the 2020
tnree-year plan growth cssumprions, consistent with o fixed growth rote *or the remaining two years for the
subsequent years until 2024. Growlthrates beyond this are in ine with farecosts of e International Monetary

Fura resevant to ecch geographical lecation.
The Growih used in yeor 1is bosed or the following key assurnplions, across all venues and geographies:

- 3montk 'dork’ periog far ali venues and preduciicns, with this cssumption deemed o be arelatively
prudent assumption os at the time of the review, 28 Morch 2023, based on managemont's vicw,
inzustry news and gevernment inifistives, which were all gegred towaids a three monih lock-Gown
perod of that point in time,

- 3monihs romp up bock 1o normal operoting funclion (0% revenue it month 1, 65%in monih 2 ang

70% in montt 3 post reopening)

SenshHivity: A recsonably passible change in the dork period to & months cregtes on imgaairment £5.7 milion
in the marketing services cash generating unit and reduces headroom in other CGUs to 24%, 118%. 23%,
and 164%, for UK. US. BB, Mehr of the camyving vaue respectively. No other reasonable sensitivities will lead

to maotenai differences.

The Company has no Intangible assets {2017 Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

13. Property. plant ond equipment - Group

Shorl-term
Freehald  Right of e Long-kerm leosehalkd  Assels under Fixhstes
property Assel  leosehold propeddy properly canshuckbon anad fitings Tolol
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000

Grovp
Cost
FARCRIRAES IOl Al 151,285 129182 6567 el ? ENERE 349 444
Aogitiom ety EAGHS 232 B45 IFTe 23432
At an of aann 15544 473 30520
Excrunrod dMterence: 1718 4 464 215 497 5,084
AT M N 20 P53 0a 140482 22347 7702 74037 4D8 500
At 5071 022 587 §a5¢ & 145 43,72y
PhRs 14 2 Gl or wse anied BS540 87.5%0
Troreiets - J10.257) FLAST -
Twermany; IMferences 5CZ 2h94 2981 137C) {531 i, §.444
A128 Morch 2020 172,729 71,184 153497 22.589 5945 100,329 544,273
Accumuioied depreciaion and impoioment
A3 sl P08 13041 21 5Bd 37n 20024 59.254
Chexsgs fon Thee 53 v o 2. R9§ 4475 Lk g8y 14,852
Exonorgpe dlerens gy 3 677 257 pA))
AL Mo sh 20T g KL 28.740 4352/ 79014 77.037
Charge Tor he 52 wook pe od 2235 £ 755 5053 528 I35% e
Impaimment - 7154 7154
Exchangg diffgrences HR4 9L 97y
A28 March 2020 20245 8.759 32477 4,945 48722 115,388
Nel book volue
A28 March 2020 152,464 82425 121020 17,544 5,545 51,407 430,908
A1 30 Morch 39 12¢.77) 110 %af 18.020 7702 45073 331 443

The amount of expenditures recognized in the carrying amount of gssels under consiruction is £8.6 million

[2019: £0.92 million).

The Company has NG property, plant and eguipment (2019: Endl).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

14. inventories - Group

Asal 52 As Ot 52 week
week petiod period enced
ended 28 30 March 2019

March 2020
£000 £000
Finished goods at cost 1,395 1,262
Inventory provision (351) -
Finished goods and goods for resale 1.044 1,262

Tne Cormpany bas ne inventory {2019: £nil).

15. invesiments In shows - Group

As at 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended perind ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £000
Investments in shows 3,794 5511

Investmernt ir shows refiect the Group's investment ie productions in which it does not hove o controling

interest.

The Company bas ne investments in shows {2019: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

16. Trade and other receivobles — Group

As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended pericd enced
28 March 30 Morch 2019

2020

£000 £000
Notes receivable 10.966 11,787
Ltong-term receivable lor develope: lee - 5.52¢
Oiher non cuten receivobles 12,352 11.373
Amounis receivable alter more than 12 months 23,318 28,689

The notes receivavle bolance compases cmounts receivable from counlerparties in relation to the

financing sfruciure of the redevelopment of Hudson Theatre via o well-used arrangement created by the

Us gavernment 1o encourage inoncial inshifutions o invest into redevelopment of histonice buldings. Inferest

is receivatle of rates between 0.48% ond 0.5%. These will be recoverable from the counterparties &ither

over ine Me of the instrument or by fransfer of leasehold interests. The iong-lerm receivable relales 1o @

balance cequired as part of the ACE acguisition ond s a fee for theatre development services provided

which will be paid over a number of years.

As at 52 week As ot 52 week
petiod ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £'000
Trace receivables 29,385 36,173
Pregayments and accrued income 11,619 15.746
Comoration tax receivable 5,037 -
Other receivobles . h _ 16‘,}31?_ 5640
‘Amounfs recelvable within 12months  ~ 62.554 57.560

The Company had no frade ond other receivables (2019 £nil).

Al impcirec rade receivobles have been provided o the exient they ore believed not ‘o be recovercbie.

The maximum exposure to credit risk al the reporting dote is the fair value of ecch class of receivable. The

Group does not hold any collateral as secuwrity. Assels which are neither past due nor impaired are

considered ully recoverabie.
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16. Trade and other receivables - Group {continued)

Analysis of trade receivabie ageing

Credit risk menogement

Credit risk refers to the risk frat o counterparty wil defoult orits confractuar abligotions resulfing in finaeciol
loss to the Groun. As ¢ 28 tAorch 2020, some of the Group's frade receivables were due ans/of past due
but rotimoaired. Thete relate to a numoer of Independent custemers with no matarncl concentration within
any one custormer anc no custormers who gre ol porficuicrly high risk of detoult. The ogeirg anclysis of these
frade receivables is as follows:

As al 52 week A5 ot 52 week

period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 sMarch 2019

£000 £020
U to 3 monihs 19,338 23,448
Jto & mantis 2,929 2.78)
Over & morths 10,314 5719
Total 32,583 31,947

As of 28 March 2020, the Group also held past due frade receivables which had been provided for:

As al 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £000
Up to 3 months 2,078 430
310 & months 07 81
Cver & months 903 37
4Toifalt ' o T 3195 o 5&5

Under IFRS 9, the Groap is required fo ulilse abjective evidence as well as condder forward looking
information, such a: the econeomic conditions in the coun'ries where the Gloup operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expecled credit tosses. The maturity of financial assets i therefore
used as anindicator as {o the probability of defoult. The adoption of IFRS 9 in the prior year did not result in
a material change in the loss allowance and impairments recoanised under IFRS 9 compared 1o that hela
uhoer 1AS 39,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

17. Cosh and cash equivalents - Group

Asat 52 week As ot 57 week
period ended perod ended
28 March 2020 30 sMarch 2019

£'000 £'000
Cash ond cash ecuivalents held in own gccounts 130,214 F1.605
Cash cnd cash ecuivalents held in escrow 8.849 7,350
Cash and cash equivaients 139,065 58956

The Company as no cash and cash equivalents {201%: £nil).

18. Trade and other payables - Group

As al 52 week As af 52 week
period ended period enced
28 March 30 Morch 201%

2020
£'000 £000
Trade paychbles 37.155 34,285
Defered income 142 354 138559
ACCruis 58,474 65,101
Other toxation ond social security 4058 7879
Tax Creditor 2,104 6118
Other poyables 15,014 16,707
Government granis received and not Ltiised 79 1,259
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 260.81¢ 264,308

The Company has ar intercompany payable of £10.9 milion {2019: £10.%9 milion) which is repayabre on

demand. ne interest s chargeo,
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19. Bomowings - Group

As gt 52 week  As at 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 30 Mcrch 2079

2020

£'000 £000
8ank loans - senior et 358.000 358083
Bank loans - revolving credit facility 69,370 -
Total senior debt 427.370 358,053
Fair velue odjustment / unamortised financing fees 14,261 10.480
gank loans - other 84,409 82,549
Borrowings 526,040 451,102
Amount due for settiement withine 12 months 69.370
Amourt due tor setlement after 12 months 454,670 451,102
Bomowings 526,040 &51.1072

The bank loons - serior gebt. cre secured by o charge over the assets of Intemationa! Ertertginment
finohce Limited, d subsigiory of the Company ang the majority af its svbsidiary undertakings, These toans
beor interest ot o rote which fluctuctes ining with LBOR with @ margin ranging between 4.25% and 4.75%

and are governed by a senior f nonce agreement with requisite covenants,
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FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

19. Bomowings - Group {confinued)

Tre Group also has other detd items. which are secured agoinst the ossett of ifs shoreholder, of £84.4
milion [2019: L82.6 million). Interest = non-cash paying and cccrues at a fotal rate of LIBOR plus 1.5%. That

debt s securec cver Ine asiete of the Group’s shareholder, and the facilty expires in 2023,

As ot 52 week  As ! 52 week
perlod ended period ended
28 March 30 March 2019

2020

£'000 £000
Bank loans - senior gobt 427,370 358053
Bank loans - other 84,409 82.56%
Fair vatue adjustment 18,461 18,661
Unamoriised financing fees (4.400) {2.181)
Net bank loans 524,040 451,102

The: Company goes rot have any Bormowings {2019 £nil}.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

20. Qbligations under finonce leases - Group

As ol 52
week period

As ot 32 week

perod ended 30

ended 28 Morch 2019
Marich 2020
£000 £000
Amount due within 12 months
Fingnce leases 4,270 4,169
IFRS 14§ Lecses 15,204
Obligations under lease liobilities 19,474 4,169
As at 52 As Ot 52 week
week period period ended 3G
ended 28 March 2019
March 2020
£'000 £00C
Amount due gfier 12 months
Finance legses 84,629 85522
IFRS 16 Lenses 71,077 -
Ohbligations under leose llablilties 157,704 85,522

finance Leases - Group

Minimum lease paymenis

Fresent volue of
minimum lease
payments

28 March 30 March 28 March 30 March

2020 209 2020 201%

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Within one year 4,286 4,244 4,270 4,149
In the second to fifth years inclusve 17,578 17.403 14,985 14,987
after five yeors 405,639 409,578 73.476 72733
477.503 431,225 92,731 91,889

Less: future finonce charges [334.439) [339.337}

93,064 91.888 92,731 ¥1.88%
unamartised finance costs (2,1465) [2.197) {2,165} {2,198}
Fresent value of :eqse obiigotion: 90,89¢ 89.691 90,566 89,691
Amount dug within 12 months 4,270 4,149
Amount duc cfier 12 months B6.62% 85,522
?0.6899 87,691

The Group lecsas certain properties under finance lease anangements. The cverage lease lemm is 75 years.

The Group does not have the option 1o purchase the properlies Tar a noming value at the end of the lease

terms, ond the Group's obligations under the finonce leases are securad over the properlies being leased,

Interest rates underlying oll ogligations under ‘inonce leoses are mplicit rares ranging from 5.3% 10 5.8%

{2019: 5.3% to 5.8%}.
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20. Obligations under finance leases - Group (continued}

IFRS 14 lease liabllities - Group

As at 52 week As ct 57 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 smonch 20019

£'000 £'000
Current 15,204
Non-current 71077
IFRS 1§ lease lioblilty B8é.261

The weighled average incrementcl berowing rate applied to measure lecse diobilities is 7. 92%.

As at 52 week

period ended 28

March 2020

Maturity analysis £'000
No lgter than | year 15,204
Later than 1 year and not iater than § yeors 12,038
Later than 5 yvears 59,039
85,281

The Group does not foce a significant liguidity risk with regord to its lease liobilities. Lease liabilities are
moenitored within the Group's treasury functlion. Overall the vonable payments constifute up to 4% ol ire
Group's entire lease payments. The group expects this ratio to remain constant in future years. The variable

payments depand on licket sales and consequently on the overall economic development over the next

few years. The tola! cash outtlow for leases omount to £13.6m (20159: £10.01m).
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21. Provisions - Group

Acquisifion- Dllapidations Refunds and Other Total

related Ticketing

provisions Provision
Group £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2018 17,842 788 - 1160 19.7%0
Additions - - - - -
Recognised on acquisition ol subsidiary 11 879 . 11,879
Release {18.380] (155} [448) {18,983}
At 30 March 2019 11,341 433 - 712 12,684
Additicns - 2611 11,241 - 13,852
Relecse {1.055) - - - [1,055)
At 28 March 2020 10.286 3,244 11.241 712 25483

Acquisition-relnted pravisiors relale 1o eam out agreements in respecT of the acquisitions of Menr! Group.

The considerclion is payoble dependenrt on success foctor critero over the next thiee years.

Diigpidotions refate to the cxpected love! of dicgpidatons mainly reloted to contral offices, The

adegquacy of the provisions is periodicclly reviewed 1o ensure that they will mee the fing: abligotions,

Tickefing & Refunds provisions relote to expected cots to be borne by the business specifically in relation

to cancelled programmes ond refund of tickels.

Cther provisians primarily relate to the possibilivy thot shows may be cancelled or loss-making. when the

Group is orce ogan gperatanal with all venues open. These provisions ore calculated on the basis of

management’s estimetes of the volume of such events tnat are expected ond the potential value of their

impact on the Group's profit or ipss.

The Campany has no provisions {2017: Znil).
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22. Deferred tax - Group

Revoluation Accelerated Acquisiion TYax losses Other timing Total

of property tax intangibles diflerences

depreciation
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Al 31 karch 2078 25139 (594) 708 [832) (3.288] 231,133
Recognited on acquisition of - 5 1.603 - - 1.608
subsiciary

Charge / {Crecit] to profit or loss (687] [65) [112) [1.6100 14670 (799)
At 30 March 2019 24,457 {454) 2199 (2.442) {1,418) 21,942
Charge / [Credit) 1o profit or loss 2114 52 {73) {212) [5.993) {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 24,573 (602) 2124 (3.354) (7.611) 17,132
28 March 30 tarch
2020 2319
£'000 £000
Defered tax liabilitics 28,699 26.656
Deferred tox assets {11,567) {4.713)
Net deferred tax liability 17,132 21,943

Deferred tax assets are expected to be reclised by profits generated in fulure years in each relevant

territory.

The Company has no deferred tax (2019 £nil),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

23. Share copital - Group and Compony

As at 82 week Az ol 52 week
period ended period ended
28 March 2020 30 March 2019

£'000 £000
Authoriseq. lssved ond fully paid:
262,167 Ordinary shares of £1 each 2482 242

No shore ssue has taken place dunng the paerod endea 28 March 2020,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

24. Notes to the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operating activities

For the 52 week For the 52

period ended  week period

28 March 2020 ended 30

taarch 2019

£'000 £000

Cperating prafit 2,242 28,325
Impoirment ot ossefts 4,930 -
Amortisction of intangible fixed assets 1.974 2872
Depteciation of property. plant and equipmoet 21,439 16852
Depreciction charge for right-of-use ossets - Buildings 87459 -
Shore of results of gssecictes ang joint ventures {702} 1371}
Movement in nan-cash payabies - {10629}
increcse/{Decreqse] in provisions 9,250 {6,905)
Gperaling cash flows bafore maovements in waorking capital 58.587 30,143
InCrese in inventories {123) (104}
Decrease inreceivabies 1815 D874
Increcse in Poyobles 8.944 8964
Cash generated by operating cctivities 49,237 48.%78
Carporaie lax paid (7.002) {3,293)
Net cash generated Irom operating activities 42,235 45 665
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

24, Notes to cash flow statement {continued)

Net debt reconciliation

Asat 52 A5 of 52 week
week peried period ended
ended 28 30 noch 2017
March 2020
£'000 £'000
Cash ond Cash eguivaients 139,065 96.956
8orrowings - repoyable after one year {456.,670) {451.102)
Net debt (317,605) (352.146)
Cash ard liguid investments 139,045 28,956
Gross debt - fixed interest rates {458,670) {451.1G2)
Net Debt (317,605) (352.144)
Other Assets  Liabllities from
finoncing
activities
Cash al bonek Borowings Total
due after one
year
£'000 £000 £'000
Net debt as at 30 March 2019 98.956 (451,102) (352,148)
Cash flows 38474 - 38,474
Foreign exchange adjustments 1,635 - 1.435
Other nion-cash movement [5.568) (5.568)
Net debl as al 28 Moarch 2020 139,045 (456,470) (317,605}
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

25. Contingent liabilities

A corporate cross guorantee of the senior debt exists between the Company and the rmcjority of its
subsidiary undertakings. The sermor debt is secured by a deberture aver the majority of 1he cssels of the
Group. The Group clso has in ploce various guarantees ocross it portfolio, which are lypical of commercial

and preperty rental agreements.

26. Commitments

Capital commitments

At ihe balonce shaet daote. Ihe Group had matena conlracteal commitments [or capita! expenaiture of
Enif {2019 Enil},
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

27. FHnanciol risk management

Copilial risk management

The Group's objectives when manoging capitol are to maoximise sharehotder velue whist safeguarding *he
Group's ability to contirue a5 ¢ going concern, In common with ather private equity potfolic compan'es.
tne Group carie: a high ievel of net cebt compared jo equity, 1otal capitali= cakulclied as total equ ty as
shown in the consclidated stotement of position, plus net debt, Net debt is colculated cs the total of

Lorrowings as shawn in the Conselidated Statement of Finencial Positicn, less cash ang cash eguivolents,
Financial risk management objectives

Tne Group's activities expose it 1o a varicty of financial risks. includ:ing cumency risk, interest rate rsk. cregit

risk ared liquidity risk.

The Group's overall nsk management pragramme focuses on minimising potenticl adverse effects on the

Group's financial nedormance.

Descaptons of the Fnoncial nsks and how hese gre managed ond miligated are included in tne Strateqic

Report on poge 14,

Tre helaw table demonstrotas -he sersitivity o o reasoncbiy possible chenge in interest rates and foreign

exchange raras.

Financial Risks Sensitivity analysis

Interest Rate Risk An  increase/decrease ol cone percentcge ooint v LBOR  would
decreosefincrease the Group's loss by £5,117,000 [2019: £4,406,000).

Foreign Exchange Had the US dollar strengthenaed agains! GBP by an addiional 1% during the
Risk period, awsumning all other varianles remained constant, the Group's loss

would have decreased by £191,000 {2519: £102.004).
Hod the Euro strengthened ogaoinst GEP by on addiriona 1% during the
pericd, assuming all other voricbles remained constant, the Group's loss

would have increased by £352.000 (201%: £11,000.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

27. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity

Tre following tables detail the Greup's remaining confractual malurdy for its inancal ichilfies with careea
repayment periods. The tables have been drown up bosea on the undiscounted cash flows of Fnancial
lighililies based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tabile includes both
interes* ond prncpol cosh flows. To the extent that interest flows are floatingrate, the undiscounied omount
is genved from inferest rate zurves ct ine balance sheet dote, The contraciual maturity s based on the

eorlies gate on which the Group may be required to poy. The Group is rof party to any desivative contracts,

Less than 1

year 1-5years 5+ years Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
28 March 2020
Trade ard other payables 115,106 - - 115,106
Einance lease liabiity 4,286 17.578 405,635 427,503
Variable interest rote insfruments 69.370 456,670 - 526,040
Total cash-settled liabilities 188,742 474,248 405,639 1,048,849
30 march 2019
rade ard other payables 117,972 - 117972
Finance lease liability 4,244 17.403 409,578 431,225
Variable interest rote instruments - - 377.5%7 377 597
Tolal cash-setlied flabliities 122214 17,231 787175 926,794

The Company has ne refevan] cash-seitied aisets or liotifities and so hos no liguidity nsk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

28. Financial Instruments

Cotegories of financial instruments

Loans and Financial Total
receivables ligbilities ot
amoriised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000
28 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 139.065 139,045
Trade ard other receivables 62,552 62,552
finaoncial assels 201,617 - 201,617
Trade ard olner payables - 117,210 117,210
Borrowings 526.040 £24,040
Obligotions under finonce leases - V77180 177.180
Financial liabiliies - 820,430 820,430
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 201,617 {820.430) (618.813)
30 March 201¢
Cash ard cash equivalents 98,954 - 98,958
Trade and other receivables 35,237 35,237
Financial assels 134,193 - 134,193
financial liabilities
Trace and othor payakbles - 124,090 124,090
Bomowings - 451,102 451,102
Obligations under incnee leases 89,691 89,491
Financial liabilities - 664,883 664,883
Net financiol assets/(liabilities) 134,193 {6464.883) (530,490)
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

28. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements

e informstion ser cut below provides informat'on atrout how the Group determines fair vatues ol various

financia! gssets and inancial iobiibes.

Fnoncicl insrumen’s are groupec info Levels 1 to 3 bosed on the degree toc which the far value s

abservohie:

- Level 1 fair volue mecsurements ore those derived from quotec prices [unodjusted) in aclive

mairkelts for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value meosurements are those derived from inputs other than gucled prices included
wihin Level 1 thal are observeobie for the ause! or liability, either direcily fe. os prices) or indirecily

(e, cerived from prices): and

- Level 3 {air value measurements are those derived from valuction techniques thet include inputs

far the ciset or liskility that are rof based on opservebie market data (uncbservable inputs].

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not meaosured at fair volue
The directars consider that the carryirg ameunts of Froncial assets ond financial liabilities recorded af

amaortied cost in the financial stalements approximate 1o thei fair values.

29. Conirolling Porty

Tne Company's ultimate parent company s IE Luxce S.arl (Luxembourg), which is controted by Providence
Equity Partners ¥Il A LP {[Coyman Islands) end Providence VI Global Hotdings [P {Cayman slends). The

Directors consider these parties to be the controling Eorty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

30. Reloted parly frgnsactions

Group
Transsactions with directors and key monogement personne)

Remuneration peia to the drectars or other, who ore considered o be key maonagemant pesarnel, is

disclosed in rote é.
Traging fransactions

During the neriod, the Grour praoviced production-reatea services to associctes and joint ventures of
£51.875 [2019: £248,000). A the end of the pericd, balaonces of £115,585 {2019: £1,238.000) weie owed 1o
tne Group by the associates ond joint ventures. These balances are unsecured ond will be settied
perodically over the course of the procuction. There are currently no provisions relafing to these ba ances,

Tnese trensactions have been conducted af arm's length.

31. Subsidiary entifies, associates and joint ventures and invesiments

Subsidiaries

100% cf the orgdinary share copital of all subsidiaries is owned directly or indirec tly unless otnerwise incicated.
Where indicoted. sharehoidings ore effective owrership perceniages s held by the parent (e, if ©
subsidiory holding company is 0% owned, and owns 100% of all its subsidiaries, ol subsiciaries ore shown as

being 0% owned).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

incorporated in Unlted Kingdom

All subsidiarnies ore 100% owned. except where indicocted ond have taken the s479c exemption from audit

uniess exempt from audit in cny case.

Subsidiary undedaking % Shares held

Direct investments
Irernational Entertainment Midao Limited!
Indirect investments

AKA Group Limitect

ARA NYC Limited?

AKX A4 Promotions Limitea?

ATG Entertainment Limited?

ATG London Limited?

ATG tAanagemen! Limitec?

ATG Productions Limited?

ATG WOTY Limiteg?

Aylcsbury Waterside Theotre Limited?
Churchil: Theotre Bromley Limted*

CP Stucio Limvted-

Dighal Media Services UK Limiteg?

Encore Intemational Merchandise Limited:?
First Formily Enterainment LLP?

G.5 Lashmor Limited” 90%

Glasgow Theatres Limited”

Rightand fing Jopan limited?
Intemational Enteriginment Finonce Limited?
International Entertainmoent investrments
Limited!

Londen Thegire Club Limited®

London Turnsiyle Limited?

tilton Keynes Theahe Limited

New wimbleden Theatre Limited?
Playhouse Theatre Limited®

Richmond Theatre Limited?

Savoy Theatre Group Limiteg®

Savoy Theatre MHoldings Limited®

Savoy Thectre Limted?

Screenstage Limited?

Screenstage Productions Lmied?®
Smar! Plays Limited?

Sonia Fedman Productions Limiled?
SFP Dregms Limiteg?

SFF Shows Limited®

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-Trent Thealres Limited?

The Ambassador Entertainment Group
Limited?

The Ambassador Thealre Group Limited?

©0

Princlpal activity

Holaing comprany

Holging comnany
Marketing scrvices
Markeling scrvices
Holging company
Theatre operator and
tcketing company
Dormand

Producticn comparny
Production company
Theatrc operator
Theaire operator
Marketing serv.ces
Digital medio services
Merchongdiser
Production company
Dormard

Theatre operalor
Dormant

Holding company
Helging company

Dorrmant

Dormant

Theatre operator
Theatre cperator
Thegtre operator
Theatre operator
Heolging company
Domanrt

Theatre operator
Dormant

Dorrnant

Dormand

Production company
Production company
Production company
Proguction company
Theatre cperator
Holding company

Holoing and producton

compaony



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The Ambastador Theatie Group {(Venuss)
Lirmited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group Overseds
Holdings Limite g

The Duke of York's Theatre Limited?

The Ticket Machine Group Limited-
Theaire Royal Brighion Limited:?

Wokirg Tumstyle Limiteds

incorporated in USA

Subsidiary undertaking

ACE Theatrical Group. LLCE

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises - Brooklyn, LLCS
Acts Center Enterprises — New QOrleons, LLCH
Arts Center Enterprises - Sugar Land, LLCF
Ambdassadaor Theatre Grous - NY, LLCA
ATG Colonial, 11 CH

ATG 5on Francisco

ATG Tickets US, LLC:

Crective Portnership LA, Inc!d

Encore merchandising, Inc '

Hudson Thegtre, LLCY

Kings Theoire Developer, LLCE

Kings Theatre Manager, LLC?

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

Majostic Prosents LLC?R

Saenger agoregatar Lleverage Lender, LLCE
Saenger Thecire Developer, Inc”

Saenger Theotre Monager, LLC

Saenger Theatre Master Tenant LLC
Saenger Thecire Porinership, Lid?

SFP-NY_ L1C¢

Saenger Thecotre Reoevelopment Compony LLCH

Sundance Productions, Inc?

The Ambassador Thestre Group US Hoidings. Inc?

% Shares held

Thealie aperator
Holzing company

Theatre operator
Tickeling ngentcy
Theatre operator
Theatre Lperalo

Principal oclivity
MoNagemaonrt services
Tneatre operator
Theatre operator
Theare opetalor
Venue operalor
Praduction company
Venue operator
Venue cperator
Ticketing ogency
Morketing services
Dommant

Theotre operator
Venue developer
Monaging membcr
Theatre operator
Theatre Operatar
financing company
Venue developer
Monoging member
Theatre gperator
Dormant

Production company
Venue developer
Progduction company

Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

ncarporaied in Geomany
The following subsid aries hove elected to appy the exemption gvailoble under §264, section 3 of the

Gemon Commercial Coce ana hove not prepared and published finoncial statements under Geman

GAAP because they are included os fully consalidates subsid'anies in the ATG Grouis finoncial statements,

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held

BB Enfericinment Holding Gmbh ™

BB Group GmbH'Y

BB Promotion G
Bodyguard Verwaltungs GmibH™
Bodyguard Musicol GmioH & Co KG!Y

ESeAS GmbE"

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held

Fandango Musical Gmibh ©

On Stage Proguchons'®

Meihr-BB Entertainment GmibH '*

Deutsche Eintrittskarten 1K8 GmbH"

Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS Service Center GmpH'

Dirty Dancing Tournee Produktions GrmoH & Co.
KG'?

tienr-BB Theater GmioH™
MMS MiAehr! Marketing & Sales GmbH!™Y

Musical-Dome Verwalrongs- und Betriebsgeseliscoft
miH?!

Slaright Express GmibH:

HP-Theater Proguktionsgesel schaft mbH '
Apomethos Gastspie! Verwaltungs GmibH L«
Schotton Gastspic! Verwaltungs GmbH iL#

Dirty Dancing Gastspial Yerwaltungs GmbH ™
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Principal activity
Holaing company
Helaing/Monagemend

services Company
Prgmotions company
Holding compoany
Production compony
Marketng servces
Principal activity
Produciion company
Production company
Holaing company
Ticketing company
Ticketing company

Production company

Theoter operotor
Markefing services

Theoter aperator

Productlion company
Proguction company
Dormant
Dormant

Helding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Incorporated in Austrolia

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Principal actlivity

AKA Promotions {Austrakz) Pty Lid's tAarketing services
Encore Merchandise {Australio) Pty Limitedi” Dormont

Thie Arnbassudor Theuhe Gioups ssiv Pucilic Ply Mroducton Company
Limited'e

Associlates and Joint Ventures

Name Incorporated % Shares held
HP Wost Ena Limided® United Kingdom 25%

JB UK Tour I Productions Lid? United Kingaom 0%

intershpw Merchandise GrnbiH* ¢ Gernmany 100%

ISV Show AGTY Switzernand S0%

Other investments

Name Incorporated % Shares held
Deutsche Eintitiskarden TKS Gmbk Germany 002%

Cieven investments |1 United Kingdom 10%

Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company  USA 108%

LLC

ierlin Entertainments pic United Kingdom 0.00%
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Principal aclivity

Production company
Produoction compony
Freduction compony

Production compony

Principal activity
Tickeling agency
Production company

Yeue developer

Ertertginment group
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FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

"Thieses companies hove o egistered office of 28 51 George Stree!, Londen WIS 2FA

“These comparies have a registered office of 115 Shallesbury Averaus, Combrridge Ciraus, London WCZH
BAc

»Inese companies have aregistered office of 277 Aoon Alexanoer House, Crurch Patk, Woking, Suresy
GU21 éE)

< Tniy compiany bas aregisiered office of 57 Foorn, 89 New Bond Street Lonaon Wis 1DA

2Tnis caompany has aregisterad office of 45 Monmouth Street, David tan Productions, Londor WC2H 200G
f Trese cormpanies have aregistered oflice of Caoitol Services, Inx., 1675 Soaln State St Ste B, Dover,

DE 19901

TThese comrpanies hove o reqisteres office of Copitol Corporate Services. inc., 8550 Urited Flara Blda, | Ste
305, Baton Rouge, La 70809

EThese companies hove a registered office of Capital Corporate Setvices. Ing,, 206 £, 91h 5, Ste 1300,
Austing, TX 78701

*Tnis compnny has aregislered office of Alelon, Lasky, Adan, Couture, & Goarmise, Richard Garmise, 551
5h Ave #4805, New York, KY 10174

“These comnanies have o registerad office of REnigenstralie 7, 68147 Mannheaim

TThis company hos aregistered office of Chanottenstr, 88, 10117 Bertin

‘Thete companies have a regitered office of LandshergiiraBe 28, 50478 K&n

“These companies have aregistered ofice of 8624 San Fernando Road, Los Angeles, CAF12:0 1796
“These companiss have aregistered office of 430, 91h Avenue, Suile 305 New Yark, Naw York 16036
“These companies have a registered office of Suite 6.1, Level 6. 3 Buwer: Crescenl, Melowne, Victona
3004, Australia

This company has sregistered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Shee!, Doubde Bay, NSW 2028

“This company has o registered office of Camenstrole 12, 8032 Zurich

EThis company has o registered office of Kemaoedienstr, 11, 53647 Kaln

" This company has ¢ registerea office of Erkratmer $ir. 30, 402332 Dosse diorf

This company hos a regisiered office of Bankssirafe 28, 20097 Hormburg

L This company has s registered office of Goidgaosse 1, 503668 KéIn

YiThis company has ¢ registered office of Stodionring 24, 44791 Bochum

2 This carmpany has sregistered office of 1800 Pest Qax Blvd. 6 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas

77056

M This company has S registerec office of 1313 N Market St Ste 5100 Wilmington, DE 19801
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